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Group Financial Highlights

£721.8m (2000 - £568.4m) +27.0%
Turnover

£103.5m (2000 - £90.2m) +14.7%
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation, 
amortisation of goodwill, integration costs 
and exceptional items ('underlying profits')

£87.5m (2000 - £89.0m) -1.7%
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

£36.0m (2000 - £42.2m) -14.7%
Profit retained for the year

75.4p (2000 - 64.2p) +17.4%
Earnings per ordinary share – underlying

59.4p (2000 - 63.0p) -5.7% 
Earnings per ordinary share – basic

58.8p (2000 - 62.3p) -5.6%
Earnings per ordinary share – fully diluted

Dividend for 2001

6.90p (2000 - 6.00p)
Interim dividend – paid 13 December 2001

16.33p (2000 - 14.20p)
Final dividend – payable 5 July 2002

23.23p (2000 - 20.20p) +15.0%
Dividend per ordinary share

Earnings per Ordinary Share -
underlying: pence

51.4

1999 2000 2001

75.4
64.2

Dividend: pence

17.55

1999 2000 2001

23.23
20.20

Analysis of Turnover: £m
■ Non Military ■ Military

435.2

242.9
55.8%

192.3
44.2%

302.6
53.2%

265.8
46.8%

405.6
56.2%

316.2
43.8%

1999 2000 2001

721.8

568.4
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Chairman’s Statement

Results
In my first annual statement as chairman, 
I am delighted to be able to report record
underlying profits which extend the group’s
consistent record of growth. Turnover for the
year increased by 27.0% to £721.8m (2000 -
£568.4m) and profit before tax, integration
costs and goodwill amortisation rose by
14.7% to £103.5m (2000 - £90.2m). Underlying
earnings per share of 75.4p (2000 - 64.2p)
were 17.4% higher than for the comparable
period last year. Your directors have
recommended an increase of 15.0% in the
final dividend to 16.33p (2000 - 14.20p) per
share. Subject to shareholders’ approval, this
will be paid on 5 July 2002 to all shareholders
on the register as at 7 June 2002.

Very satisfactory growth was achieved in 
each of the group’s main business areas –
manufacturing, avionics and flight operations.
The only real disappointment was in
manufacturing where Westwind had an
unsatisfactory year as the electronics
industry went into a sharp decline during 
the second half of the year. 

The group generated cash from operations 
of £90.2m (2000 - £100.3m). Net debt at the
year end represented a gearing level of 66%,
slightly less than that reported for the half
year and up from 56% at the start of the year
as a result of acquisition activity.

The group invested £28.2m (2000 - £21.6m)
in research and development and £32.2m
(2000 - £45.8m) in capital expenditure on new
equipment and facilities. As a percentage
this level of continued investment in the group
is reflected favourably in the Department 
of Trade and Industry scoreboard for 
UK companies.

New orders worth £0.8bn were won during
the year and total orders-in-hand at the end
of the year amounted to £1.3bn, slightly ahead
of the previous year after allowing for the
transfer of orders worth £0.1bn, relating to a
services contract, into a joint venture company.

Corporate Development
During the year the group continued to
supplement its strong underlying organic
growth with carefully selected acquisitions.

A number of medium and small-sized
acquisitions were made in the year for a total
consideration of £69.8m and it is estimated
that a further £22.6m may become payable 
as deferred and contingent consideration.  
In terms of purchase price the most
significant acquisitions were those of TEAM SA
which produces airborne audio management
systems, Omnipless Pty Limited, which
produces satellite-based communications
systems, and the Airtron waveguide product
line from Litton Industries Inc. 

In December FR Aviation Group and
Singapore Technologies Aerospace agreed to
form a joint venture company to overhaul and
maintain large commercial aircraft. The new
company, 40% owned by FR Aviation Group and
60% owned by Singapore Technologies, is called
Bournemouth Aviation Services Company and
will be based at Bournemouth International
Airport. It is expected to become operational
in the second quarter of 2002.

New orders
worth £0.8bn 
were won during
the year and total
orders-in-hand 
at the end of the
year amounted 
to £1.3bn...

“
”
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Outlook
The dreadful events of 11 September cast 
a shadow over the latter part of 2001 which
continues into 2002. This, combined with the
downturn in commercial aerospace industry
that was already underway, has resulted in 
a less certain outlook than in previous years.
In recent years, group companies have won
substantial business on newer commercial
aircraft. In the main, the operation of these
aircraft has been less affected than older
‘legacy’ aircraft. Even so, we expect 
to see some drop in commercial aerospace
demand in 2002.  In overall terms, commercial
aerospace and general aviation accounts for
about 20% of group turnover. 

The emphasis in recent conflicts on the rapid
deployment of specialist forces has caused 
a reconsideration of traditional military
capabilities. Group companies are already
seeing benefits from increased demand 
to appropriate niche technology products 
and services.

In 2001, a number of major programme
decisions were taken regarding the US Joint
Strike Fighter, Airbus A380 and A400M, the 
Rolls-Royce Trent 900 engine and the formal
study by Boeing of its proposed sonic cruiser
aircraft.  Group companies are involved in all
of these new programmes and this augurs
well for the medium and longer term
development of the group.

The consensus view is that the next upturn in
the commercial aerospace cycle is unlikely to
occur before 2004, but with our participation
in a wide range of commercial and defence
programmes, future prospects for the group
remain encouraging.

People
Sir Michael Knight retired as chairman in
November 2001 after six and a half years in
that role. We are greatly indebted to him for
his contribution and the enthusiasm which he
brought to the business. On behalf of everyone
in the group, I wish him and his family
continuing good health and happiness.

In January 2001 Allan Cook was appointed
deputy chief executive and succeeded me as
chief executive in November.  He brings a
wealth of experience to the group and will be
responsible for its operational development
in the years ahead.

At the 2002 annual general meeting, The
Lord Rockley will retire as a non-executive
director of Cobham after more than 12 years
of very valuable service to the group. His
board colleagues and I thank him and wish
him well in retirement. As mentioned in the
directors' report, the board expects to appoint
at least one new independent non-executive
director during 2002.

The group’s performance is a source of pride
to us all and is built on the hard work of all
employees. I thank them for their
contribution in the year and am confident, 
as is the board, that our record of growth 
will be continued.

Gordon Page, Chairman

21 March 2002

Westwind Air Bearings apprentices took 1st, 2nd and

3rd places in the Engineering Employers’ Federation

South West Apprentice of the Year Awards 2001 

1st Christopher Adams (right), 2nd Gavin Walters (centre)

and 3rd Richard Jeffery (left)
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Board of Directors

G F Page CBE, MA, FRAeS Chairman

Appointed to the board in 1990, Mr Page, aged 58, joined the group as managing director of Flight Refuelling Limited having

previously been commercial director – military engines of Rolls-Royce plc. He was appointed deputy chief executive in 1991,

chief executive in 1992 and chairman in November 2001. He is a non-executive director of Amey plc, vice-president of The

Society of British Aerospace Companies Ltd, a member of the Department of Trade and Industry’s Industrial Development

Advisory Board and chairman of the Wessex branch of the Institute of Directors.

A E Cook BSc, CEng, FRAeS Chief Executive

Appointed to the board in 2001, Mr Cook, aged 52, joined the group from BAE SYSTEMS where he was group managing director 

of programmes and managing director Eurofighter. He was formerly group managing director of GEC-Marconi Avionics and

chief executive of Hughes Aircraft (Europe). He is also a director of The Society of British Aerospace Companies Ltd.

A G Irwin FCA Group Financial Director

Appointed to the board in 1983, Mr Irwin, aged 58, joined as group financial director – a position he continues to hold. Prior to

joining Cobham, he acted as both a financial director and chief financial officer of a number of listed multinational companies.

R H L Clark Managing Director, Flight Refuelling Limited

Appointed to the board in 1995, Mr Clark, aged 56, joined the group as commercial director of Flight Refuelling Limited 

in 1981. He is managing director of that company, having been appointed in 1991, and is responsible to the board for the 

performance of the Flight Refuelling group. He is also a director of The Society of British Aerospace Companies Ltd and 

a member of the Department of Trade and Industry's Aerospace Committee.

G C Cooper OBE, CPhys, FRAeS Managing Director, Chelton Limited 

Appointed to the board in 1995, Mr Cooper, aged 56, joined the group as managing director of Chelton Limited – a position 

he continues to hold – on the acquisition of that company in 1989. He is responsible to the board for the performance of the 

Chelton group.
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Top row from left: G F Page, A E Cook, 

A G Irwin, R H L Clark, G C Cooper, G E Roe

Bottom row from left: The Lord Rockley, J D M Smith, 

J W Edington, J M Pope (Company Secretary)

G E Roe  FRAeS Managing Director, FR Aviation Group Limited

Appointed to the board in 1997, Mr Roe, aged 57, joined the group as managing director of FR Aviation Limited after a career

with the Ministry of Defence during which he held a number of senior posts including that of director general of aircraft

systems. He is responsible to the board for the performance of the FR Aviation group. 

The Lord Rockley Non-executive Director

Appointed to the board as a non-executive director in 1990, The Lord Rockley, aged 68, is a non-executive director of various

companies including the Foreign and Colonial Investment Trust PLC and is non-executive chairman of Hall & Woodhouse

Limited. He is a former chairman of Kleinwort Benson Group plc.

J D M Smith BSc Non-executive Director

Appointed to the board as a non-executive director in 1996, Mr Smith, aged 62, is a non-executive director of Bullough plc and

Paterson Zochonis plc, and a former director of BTR plc.

J W Edington PhD, DSc, FIM, FREng Non-executive Director

Appointed to the board as a non-executive director in 1996, Mr Edington, aged 62, was, until his retirement, executive director,

technology with Corus Group plc (formerly British Steel plc) where he had responsibility for product and process technology,

the environment and information technology.  Prior to joining British Steel in 1992, Mr Edington was vice-president, research

and technology at Alcan Aluminium Limited based in Montreal.  He is also a non-executive director of AstroPower Inc.
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Review of Operations

Due into service in 2006 and with over 100

firm orders to date for the aircraft, Cobham

sees considerable opportunities for new

business on the Airbus A380

Cobham has had an excellent year in 2001. This is my first annual report having joined the
board as deputy chief executive in January 2001 and subsequently taking over from Gordon
Page as chief executive at the end of November 2001. I have inherited a growing, successful
company and my goal is to deliver improved and sustainable financial returns in a
competitive aerospace and defence environment.

Business Growth
In a recent survey of best managed UK companies carried out by “Management Today”
magazine, the group was ranked 37 out of the top 150 companies and number one in 
the aerospace and defence sector. The group is highly regarded in the US and European
aerospace and defence sector for continued growth driven by investment, operational
improvement and the ability to identify and successfully integrate acquisition targets.

Strategic Development
The strategic development of the group will continue to be built on the solid foundations 
of its strong track record to date. This will be underpinned by financial strength as well as
the successful combination of acquisitions and organic growth. The group aspires to be an
independent, growing, competitive, learning organisation. This means that we must harness
the full capability of all of our staff and suppliers to meet or exceed stakeholder and
customer expectations in our chosen market-place.

The corporate objectives of the group include delivering sustained annual underlying
earnings growth and to seize opportunities presented to us by further potential rationalisation
of the aerospace and defence industry. It is intended to maintain the group’s focus in its
chosen markets while retaining a balanced portfolio of companies whose products lead the
world. A major aspiration is to maintain market leadership positions and where necessary
become number one in its areas of expertise. My responsibility will be to create the environment
which encourages, rewards and motivates staff at all levels, in order to meet these aspirations.

”
The group aspires to be an independent, growing,

competitive, learning organisation.“
Allan Cook 

Chief Executive



Several Cobham companies will benefit from

the new Lockheed Martin F-35 Joint Strike

Fighter aircraft programme
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Review of Operations continued

Manufacturing

Despite the
tragic events of 
11 September and
the downturn in
the civil aerospace
market, Flight
Refuelling's 
FR-HiTEMP
division had an
excellent year.

“
Manufacturing 2001 2000

Turnover - third party £309.9m £261.9m

Operating profit – excluding goodwill 
amortisation of £4.7m (2000 - £1.9m) 
and integration costs of £4.1m (2000 - £nil) £50.3m £48.4m

The Flight Refuelling group of companies continues to show growth and once again achieved
record sales and underlying profits for 2001. It also finished the year with another record
order book.

Despite the tragic events of 11 September and the downturn in the civil aerospace market,
Flight Refuelling's FR-HiTEMP division had an excellent year. The division continues to realise
the benefits of delivering improved value to its customers through investments made in the
business and its continued commitment to lean manufacturing techniques and business
excellence. Following the acquisition of the Power and Control business of BAE SYSTEMS 
at the end of last year, substantial progress has been made in integrating this business with
existing operations in the UK and the USA. FR-HiTEMP has been awarded a five year contract
to supply the low pressure fuel pumps on the Airbus A320 aircraft. Airbus has also selected
the division to design and build the low pressure fuel pumps for their prestigious A380 airliner.
The division was selected by Rolls-Royce to supply engine ancillaries for the new Trent 900
engine for the A380. FR-HiTEMP will supply a range of components for the Lockheed F-35
Joint Strike Fighter aircraft and is actively engaged in winning more business on this
important programme. Although the division faces challenges during the civil aerospace
downturn, it is well positioned to manage the business during this period and to emerge 
as a stronger competitor when the market resumes its growth.

Flight Refuelling’s military systems division had a satisfactory year with work completed 
on the development of the new Mk32B-900 series air to air refuelling pod for the US Marine
Corps KC-130J programme. Several aircraft have now been delivered by Lockheed Martin 
to the US Marine Corps and the aircraft is currently undergoing the planned operational, test
and evaluation (OT&E) programme which will lead to entry into service. During the year, the
division secured a contract from Boeing for Phase II of the United States Air Force Special
Operations Command (AFSOC) programme to fit the Mk32B-900 pod to its MC130H Talon II
aircraft fleet. Phase II covers the engineering, manufacturing and development of the platform
and it is expected that the production element (Phase III) will start in 2003. Further air to air
refuelling programmes were secured during the year, most notably for Malaysia and Sweden.
In addition, Flight Refuelling is now under contract to equip a major overseas air force with
its first operational air to air refuelling capability. Initial deliveries will commence in 2003. 
No further details can be currently released. There remain many opportunities for the supply
of air to air refuelling systems worldwide including the UK government's future strategic
tanker aircraft (FSTA) programme. 

AFSOC MC130H refuelling an 

MH-53 helicopter

”



The Eurofighter programme represents

significant business for Flight Refuelling.

Products include fuel system components

and missile eject launchers
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Review of Operations continued

Manufacturing continued

In March 2002, the company was informed that it had been unsuccessful in its bid to Boeing
to become the strategic supplier for air to air refuelling equipment on the global 767 tanker
transport programme. However, Flight Refuelling has been selected on a number of other
programmes already referred to which will increase annual turnover in this area of specialised
equipment (including spares and repairs) to over £30m annually over the next four years
compared to under £20m per annum over the last four years.

The division's weapons carriage & release group has now commenced deliveries of missile
eject launchers for the Eurofighter programme and completed development of the weapons
launcher for the Brimstone anti-armour
missile. The division's common rail launcher
programme for the RAF's Harrier GR7 fleet
continues to proceed satisfactorily. Following
the success of this programme, the division
has secured a contract from the Swedish Air
Force for the fitting of the common rail
launcher to its Gripen fleet. Further orders are expected for this product following the success
of Gripen in both the Czech Republic and Hungary. The division is actively engaged in offering
this product for other platforms.

Wallop Defence Systems, which supplies military pyrotechnics and infrared (IR)
countermeasures, had a mixed year. Financial performance did not meet expectations but 
it has secured a significant contract from the UK MoD worth approximately £4m for the supply 
of BOZ 55mm IR countermeasure flares in 2002 with options for further annual buys which
could raise the value of this contract to approximately £12m. In addition to this, it secured a
contract from the UK MoD for initial production of its innovative Hot SpotTM spectral series
flares. The development of this product, together with the division's success in the standard
flares market and its other shipboard countermeasures systems, has placed the division in a
world class position in IR expendable countermeasures and confirms its status as the
leading UK supplier of air IR countermeasures.

Stanley Aviation in the USA experienced difficulties with the Boeing C-17 airlifter tube and
duct contract. Problems relating to the producibility of the product have, however, now been
resolved and the programme has been reconfigured against agreed new baselines. The
company's future in this long term programme is secure and there are good prospects for
further significant buys of the aircraft by the US Air Force. The company continues to make
progress in securing business positions on important military programmes such as the 
F-22 and F-35 aircraft.

Sargent Fletcher in the USA had a very satisfactory year with record sales and profits. It is
actively engaged in marketing the pneumatic weapons ejector technology which was licensed
from Boeing in 2000. Several significant programmes have been identified where this
technology might be utilised. The company is also working with Boeing on the United States
small diameter bomb weapons competition. Orders continue to be received for its external
fuel tanks and special purpose pods.

Swedish Air Force JAS 39 Gripen

aircraft fitted with Flight Refuelling's

common rail launcher

Sargent
Fletcher in the
USA had a very
satisfactory year
with record sales 
and profits.

“
”
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Military aviation oxygen products
generated the highest revenues of the
major business segments.

US Marine Corps KC-130J with

new Mk32B-900 series air to air

refuelling pod

The Avery Hardoll fuel measurement and control equipment business, which
was part of the Power and Control division acquired from BAE SYSTEMS, has
been transferred to Alan Cobham Engineering. 2001 has been a transitional
year as the two businesses have now been combined on to one site in Blandford,
Dorset. From April 2002, this enlarged business will be known as Cobham
Fluid Systems to reflect the extended product range and market base.

Carleton in the USA completed another successful trading year, with continuing
robust growth in sales. New orders were above plan, resulting in a record
order book entering 2002.

Military aviation oxygen products generated the highest revenues of the
major business segments. The CRU-103 chest-mounted breathing regulator
for the US Navy reached production levels of 350 per month under a multi
year contract. A panel-mounted version of the regulator has also been
developed and qualified and is expected to yield significant future sales. 

Pneumatic control components and sub-systems for missile controls have continued
to generate future opportunities for Carleton. An integrated control system for the
Paveway 2 guided bomb conversion kit was developed and qualified and an order for
5,000 units was received for US Navy deployment. The Paveway 2 has become the
weapon of choice in recent conflicts and there is substantial potential for production 
of Carleton’s optimised and cost-effective pneumatic sub-system. Hellfire/Longbow
also continued in rate production during 2001. The missile product team is now
concentrating development on new pneumatic technology for wing mounted
applications. Wing and tail fin deployment actuators have been developed and qualified

for the joint air to surface stand off missile (JASSM) programme and initial production orders
are expected early in 2002. The advanced short range air to air missile (ASRAAM) cryostat has
now entered the production phase of the programme.

“ ”

Carleton's integrated control system

for the Paveway 2 guided bomb
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Review of Operations continued

Manufacturing continued

Carleton's pneumatic sub-systems selected

for the Comanche helicopter programme

Boeing Business Jets include Carleton's new

gaseous oxygen system

The commercial aircraft products business segment produced 
solid revenues for traditional oxygen and inflation valve components.
The year also marked the strengthening of the alliance with Dräger
Aerospace of Lübeck, Germany. A new gaseous oxygen system was
developed for Boeing Business Jet conversions undertaken by Lufthansa
Technik. Six new oxygen systems were developed for the Airbus
A340-500/600 programme, and production will commence in 2002.
These products form the foundation of a new set of hardware to support
future commercial aircraft programmes at both Airbus and Boeing.

In addition to continuing support of the mature oxygen systems 
in the military aircraft arena, major effort has been focused on winning
new business. On the Comanche helicopter, Carleton was selected 
to design and develop pneumatic sub-systems for the emergency

deployment of landing gear and weapons bay doors. The company is also competing for
three additional pneumatic components on the programme. The vapour cycle cooling system
for the Air Warrior programme was successfully developed, and is undergoing system
qualification by the US Army. This technology is suitable for deployment on a wide range 
of personal and electronic cooling applications.

Carleton Life Support Technologies, the Canadian subsidiary, successfully completed production
of 52 A5800 electronically controlled rebreathers for the Royal Malaysian Navy. The new
VIPER family of rebreathers also created wide interest among new and existing customers.

The space products team is engaged largely in supporting the existing shuttle, extravehicular
mobility unit (EMU) and the international space station. The team is also developing a new
technology electronic flow sensor for space application. Carbon fibre composite cylinders
designed and manufactured by the pressure technology division in Baltimore continue to be the
product of choice for many customers. In 2001 new business development activities in the
civil aircraft market did not materialise at the predicted rate. However, new projects began to
mature in the last quarter and the division is expected to resume its growth pattern in 2002. 

Carleton is well positioned to take advantage of immediate market opportunities for its
missile system products and to capitalise on the considerable development effort expended 
on a range of new products.

Carleton is well positioned to 
take advantage of immediate market 
opportunities...“ ”

Carleton's new VIPER electronically 

controlled rebreather
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Carleton has over 

200 components on the

international space station 

Technology developed by Conax for 

the Javelin anti-armour missile is 

being applied to other programmes

Photo courtesy of Lockheed Martin

Conax's water activated life vest

Conax Florida had an excellent year in 2001, exceeding expectations in turnover,
profit and order intake. The business segment for IR seeker components continues
to provide new and significant opportunities. Conax is in full rate production in
support of the Javelin anti-armour missile for US requirements and is actively
engaged with the Javelin joint venture in the pursuit of foreign military sales that 
will extend production requirements for several years. Other contracts utilising
this technology have now been secured for the brilliant anti-tank munition
(BAT), as well as new development efforts on the line of sight anti-tank weapon
(LOSAT), theatre high altitude area defence (THAAD) and exoatmospheric kill
vehicle (EKV) programmes. 

Conax supplies the major share of the global pyrovalve market for satellite
programmes and launch vehicles. Conax completed the suite of valves supplied

to Lockheed Martin by qualifying multiple valves for Atlas V and the A2100 satellite business.
The company has also been selected as the primary supplier of valves for Boeing Satellite
Systems propulsion equipment and has recently seen the successful operation of its products
on board the Mars 01 space module. Market reach now extends to Europe with the Astrium
Rosetta and Eurostar contracts.  

Conax enjoyed an excellent year with its core water activated product line. Major orders were
secured for the FLU 8/9, Deck Crew life vest inflation products and universal water activated
release system (UWARS) personnel parachute release products. More significantly, Conax
qualified its passive anti-suffocation device (PASD) for the US Navy and expects to receive the
first production order in 2002. The increased order book at the end of 2001 has resulted in a
favourable outlook for Conax in 2002.

Westwind had a difficult 2001. Trading in the first half of the year was higher than the budget
following record orders in 2000, but the precipitous fall in new orders during 2001 severely affected
the business in the second half. As a result of this, the profit contributed by Westwind was
unacceptably low. Appropriate measures have been taken to reflect much reduced trading volumes.
The results for 2002 are heavily dependent upon the timing of a recovery in the worldwide electronics
market and there are early signs of a recovery in dynamic random access memory (DRAM) prices,
higher loading levels in printed circuit board (PCB) factories and increased levels of original
equipment manufacturers (OEM) spares and repairs business.
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Review of Operations continued

Avionics

The Chelton group had an outstanding year with all five operating groups – core antennas,
microwave, avionics, European microwave and composites – achieving record sales and
profits while ending the year with best ever order books.

In the antennas group, production of traffic collision avoidance systems (TCAS), global
positioning systems (GPS) and ARC-210 antennas continued at high levels and the Starec HF
ground loop antenna achieved significant first orders in the USA, Middle East and Europe.
Successful bids were made to supply antennas for the  M346, A380, F-14, F-15 and F-16
programmes. Production contracts for Tiger, NH90, Rafale and Eurofighter were received.
Chelton continues to consolidate its position as the leading supplier of aircraft nav-com antennas.

The acquisition of Omnipless in South Africa early in the year has added a complete
INMARSAT antenna capability. Chelton is now employing this new technology to address
military satcom opportunities in the UK and USA whilst developing future new global high
speed data markets.

The new Series 7 direction finder and terrestrial trunked radio (TETRA) systems represent
important future core products for Chelton and 2002 should see the first profitable business
established.

The acquisition of Omnipless in South Africa 
early in the year has added a complete INMARSAT
antenna capability.“

Avionics 2001 2000

Turnover – third party £224.3m £163.9m

Operating profit – excluding goodwill 
amortisation of £5.6m (2000 - £1.9m) £47.7m £34.0m

European Antennas had a disappointing year with lower than expected profits, caused
entirely by the near collapse of the telecom infrastructure market. However, whilst 2002 
is likely to remain flat, the company continues to introduce new products for a variety of
markets beyond its core telecoms sector.

Search and rescue and homeland defence are potential major business areas for Chelton
and the acquisition of Micromill has enabled it to address – in conjunction with Culham
Electromagnetics – challenging new requirements in this area.

Eurocopter NH90 helicopter

”



Omnipless Aero M Systems for

INMARSAT global communications
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Review of Operations continued

Avionics continued

Chelton Avionics in the USA had an excellent year. Wulfsberg received multi
million dollar orders for radios for the US Air Force joint primary aircraft
training system (JPATS) and T-38C programmes. It also won a multi million
dollar contract for the US Customs’ RT-5000 radio upgrade programme. The
acquisition of Sierra Flight Systems, now operating as Chelton Flight Systems,
has opened a significant marketing opportunity in the general aviation sector
and is likely to provide the company with leading edge technology to offer to its
main customer base. Flight certification of the product is on schedule to be
achieved during 2002. In December the company was selected for the FAA
sponsored Cap Stone programme with the Chelton Flight Systems electronic
flight information system (EFIS). Further growth is expected to be achieved by
the development or acquisition of technologies that will complete the
company's product portfolio.

Northern Airborne Technology in Canada continued to expand into the helicopter and export
markets reflecting strong potential for the future. ACR Electronics in the USA, although
impacted by the downward economic pressures, holds a strong position in its marine 
markets. Artex and Comant in the USA both turned in very strong performances showing
significant growth.

In the European microwave group, Air Précision had another record year. A number of new
slipring programmes have been won for both civil and military applications in the company's
traditional and new markets. These included new business from Sidel and Krones, and
orders from Eurocopter for the de-icing sliprings for the EC 155 and EC 725 helicopters. 
The company's OEM business for aircraft and helicopter lights and precision electronic
clocks progressed well and the product range was enhanced by the development of a 
GPS-synchronised clock for the regional jet market.

The capabilities of Air Précision's and Satori's avionics and instrument repair and overhaul
facilities were further expanded. Among a number of commercial successes was the
appointment by Telephonics of Satori as the sole French approved repair station for its 
RDR 1200/1300/1400/1500 family of radars.

In January 2001 the acquisition of TEAM, the European leader in the design and manufacture
of on-board intercommunication systems and audio-radio management systems for aircraft
and helicopters, provided a valuable addition to the existing Chelton product lines. TEAM
already equips Airbus aircraft with its analog audio management unit (AMU). Its newly
developed digital AMU, now certified and selected for the A340-600, will from 2002 also be
installed on A320/A330/A340 platforms. TEAM was the only company short listed to provide
the new radio and audio management system (AMS) for the future A380. During 2001, the
first production units of the intercommunication systems for the Tiger helicopter and the
Rafale fighter aircraft were delivered.

Chelton's European microwave systems companies had a successful year with both
Credowan and Hyper Technologies enjoying sustained activity in the space sector. New 
ultra-light waveguides for space applications were also successfully introduced. Significant
deliveries to Astrium started during the year for the Hotbird 7 and Intelsat X-01 programmes.

Chelton
Avionics in the 
USA had an
excellent year.“

”

Chelton Flight Systems electronic flight

information system display

An Air Précision slipring assembly
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A 30 inch diameter flat plate radar array built 

by Continental Microwave

TEAM's newly developed digital audio

management unit has been selected 

for the A340-600

In November 2001, Hyper Industrie and Hyper Numériques, complementary businesses to
Hyper Technologies, were acquired. These companies, located close to Hyper Technologies'
premises in France, will increase that company’s existing production capacity and product range.

Salies in France had a successful first year with Chelton, making record sales of backbone
ground equipment utilising coaxial and fibre optic technologies for the telecom sector.

Sivers in Sweden also had a very good year supplying rotary joints to Raytheon for the digital
airport surveillance radar (DASR) programme and winning major new orders for Bharat radars
for EADS and AMS Italy air traffic control radar systems.

Chelton Microwave had an excellent year with record revenues, earnings,
bookings and backlog. The downturn in the economy had a minimal effect
as military and space sales growth compensated for weakness in the
commercial markets. The acquisition of Litton Airtron’s microwave 
product line from Northrop Grumman in the USA had a significant impact 
on Chelton Microwave companies as the products were relocated and
distributed throughout this group. Airtron’s impact on Continental Microwave
was the most dramatic as resulting revenues are expected to double in 2002.
New capabilities introduced, such as flat plate array manufacture, now
make Continental the world’s leading supplier of weather radar antennas.
Continental’s commercial space and military businesses saw a continued
growth in sales and backlog with new contracts being awarded for the in-flight
data link waveguides for F-22 and high reliability waveguides for New Sky’s
six satellites. Chelton Control Systems, a relatively small division of
Continental, tripled in size during the year and has rapidly established a
broad line of pin diode switching products used in several niche military
markets, including the US Army’s air traffic navigation integration and
coordination system (ATNAVICS).

New capabilities introduced, such as flat
plate array manufacture, now make Continental
the world's leading supplier of weather radar
antennas.“

”

Continental Microwave supply in-flight data

link waveguides for the F-22
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Review of Operations continued

Avionics continued

A sample of Nurad antenna products

Kevlin rotary joint assembly 

for multi mode maritime

surveillance radar

Nurad in the USA had an outstanding year with the successful integration of the Transco product
line, acquired from Datron in late 2000. Nurad has continued as the world leader in the electronic
warfare (EW) jammer antenna market and is now a significant player in radar warning receivers
and direction finding EW systems as well as airborne microwave communication, navigation and
identification (CNI) antennas. In addition to supplying antennas and radomes for many US EW
programmes including ALQ-131 and ALQ-135, Nurad has also won the Korean ALQ-X pod
antenna contract.

Kevlin in the USA continues to maintain its prominent position in the military and air traffic
control rotary coupler markets. The company won the ARSR-3 portion of the air traffic
control beacon interrogator-6 (ATCBI-6) programme and the contract for the upgrade and
refurbishment for all the ARSR-4 radars. 

Atlantic Microwave in the USA had a challenging but solid year as it continued to expand its
markets in EW simulation antennas. Contract awards include the antenna sub-system for
the mobile remote emitter simulator, and ground remote terminal (GRT) antennas for the
global broadcast service. The company also secured the contract to supply the 24-way
power combiner, which will be used on the scaled down Aegis radar for smaller ships and
foreign military sales. Atlantic has also developed several new products and technologies
that will allow it to be a significant player in the active phased array radar programmes that
are being used in new high performance military radars.

In the Chelton composites group, Slingsby had its biggest success for several years winning
a major order for 16 Firefly aircraft for the Royal Jordanian Air Force. In addition, an order
for 3 Firefly aircraft for the Bahrain Amiri Air Force has been secured. Further sales of this
all composite primary trainer are likely with upgraded avionics being planned that will utilise
the new Chelton Flight System's EFIS.

Composites business in the railway and civil aerospace market slowed down during the
latter part of the year but it is hoped to offset this reduction with increased defence business,
including major sub-contract work for Flight Refuelling on the Phoenix unmanned air
vehicle (UAV) and from BAE SYSTEMS on the Sampson radar.

Chelton Radomes had an excellent year with continued production of TCAS and Longbow radomes
and important new radome business for Eurofighter defensive aids system (DAS), ASTOR,
EH101, Nimrod DAS/ECM, Eurofighter fin tips and configured radiation pattern antennas (CRPA).

Overall, Chelton’s increasingly diverse product portfolio leaves it well placed to continue its
growth through 2002 and beyond as particular focus is applied to antennas, microwave and
radio frequency technology, search and rescue and avionics systems engineering. 

Overall, Chelton's
increasingly diverse
product portfolio
leaves it well placed
to continue its growth
through 2002 and
beyond...

“
”



Important new business for Chelton

Radomes on EH101 helicopter
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Review of Operations continued

Flight Operations
and Services

The FR Aviation group had a good year with strong performances in its core activities of
flight operations, aviation services, engineering and the aviation businesses in Australia.

FR Aviation’s flight operations business has been successful in providing excellent customer
support across all programmes. Several new long term contracts have been awarded during
the year and this success results from the company’s strategy of offering long term, mutually
beneficial partnerships to its customers. 

The company is a recognised leader in air defence training and has continued to provide the
UK MoD with the highest quality service, within the UK and on overseas detachment, under a
10 year contract. The MoD may extend the contract in five year tranches, subject to satisfactory
performance. In support of this activity the company is currently embarking on a major upgrade
of its Falcon 20 fleet to enhance operational capability. This will include an upgrade to the
latest avionics equipment. This contract is a model of successful partnering and acknowledged
by the MoD as a prime example of ‘smart acquisition’.

FR Aviation Survey was formed to combine FR Aviation’s aerial surveillance and survey activities.
This focus has already contributed to winning new 10 year contracts with the government for
specialised aerial services. These contracts will provide a stable platform for the business and
expansion of the company's surveillance capabilities. The company has also been successful
in winning contracts for commercial aerial survey, which will enable it to exploit this market
further into the future. Flight Precision has been awarded a follow on 10 year contract by the
UK MoD to calibrate military airfields in the UK. The company was also successful in winning
contracts for calibration services in overseas markets in Europe and beyond.

Flight Operations and Services 2001 2000

Turnover – third party £187.6m £142.6m

Operating profit – excluding goodwill 
amortisation of £1.6m (2000 - £1.1m) £19.2m £14.7m

The company is a recognised leader 
in air defence training and has continued 
to provide the UK MoD with the highest
quality service...“

”Flight Precision has continued to win new

business in addition to a follow on 10 year

contract from the UK MoD



FR Aviation's upgraded Falcon 20

aircraft now possess enhanced

operational capability



Review of Operations
Flight Operations and Services continued

In partnership with BAE SYSTEMS, FR Aviation Services carries
out engineering support of in-service Nimrod aircraft at RAF
Kinloss, Scotland and as 2001 ended the MoD was finalising a 
5 year follow on contract for the provision of these services. The
company had a very successful year which also saw the expansion
of its fuel tank repair capability for an increasing range of UK
and overseas customers. 

In December 2001, FR Aviation Group reached agreement to form
a new joint venture company called Bournemouth Aviation Services
Company (BASCO). The new company will be owned 40% by FR
Aviation Group and 60% by Singapore Technologies Aerospace,
part of Singapore Technologies Engineering, a global player in
engineering and aerospace. BASCO will undertake heavy
aircraft maintenance at the FR Aviation site at Bournemouth
International Airport. Building on the experience gained by FR

Aviation on its Boeing 727 maintenance programmes, BASCO has high growth potential over
the next 10 years utilising the existing hangar facilities. The new company will provide a
centre of excellence for aerospace engineering alongside FR Aviation’s other facilities.

Australian Government Customs Service

Dash 8-200 aircraft operated by

Surveillance Australia
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FR Aviation’s own engineering activity has enjoyed success during the year in maintaining 
and modifying a range of civil and military aircraft types. The company’s engine maintenance
capability was brought together during the year in a new subsidiary company called FRA Airmotive.

Following the collapse of Australia’s second largest airline, Ansett Australia, National Jet
Systems (NJS) is now in a good position to provide additional services to its main
customers, Qantas Airlink and Australian Air Express. Overall NJS flying hours increased
by 12% during the year. The new NJS engineering facilities in Adelaide and Brisbane which
commenced construction in late 2001 will improve its engineering capabilities and provide
new regional business opportunities. 

National Air Support was formed during the year to focus on government, military and
special mission aviation opportunities in Australia and neighbouring regions. Its subsidiary
company Surveillance Australia, the coastal air surveillance contractor for the Australian
Government Customs Service, gained an increase in flying hours for 2002-2005, through an
increasing government emphasis on border security. The company also formed an
Australian joint venture company with Bristow Helicopters Australia to exploit the
successful UK partnership in pursuit of major Australian Defence Force helicopter training
opportunities that will be subject to tender during 2002 and 2003.

”
...FR Aviation Group reached agreement to form a new 

joint venture company called Bournemouth Aviation Services
Company (BASCO)... The new company will provide a centre 
of excellence for aerospace engineering...“

Review of Operations continued

Flight Operations and Services continued

National Jet Systems’ ability to run efficient airline

operations is reflected in Qantas choosing the

company to run services on its behalf 
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FR Aviation’s partner in the French joint venture company, AVdef, sold its shareholding to EADS/ECI
during the year. As a consequence, FR Aviation now has a new partnership with one of the world’s
most powerful aerospace and defence companies. This will provide major new opportunities for
the company to participate in the European market in a range of aviation and aerial services.

In April 2001, FB Heliservices (FBH) was established to combine the support services provided to
FBS for the Defence Helicopter Flying School (DHFS) at RAF Shawbury and at the School of Army
Aviation at Middle Wallop. These services were previously provided by FR Aviation Services and
Bristow Helicopters respectively. The new company, which is jointly owned with Bristow Helicopters,
will also provide other military helicopter services in the UK and overseas.

Falcon Special Air Services, based in Malaysia, has continued to provide air defence training
services to the Malaysian Navy during the year and this company is being used as the vehicle 
to promote FR Aviation’s capabilities in the region. 

AirTanker submitted its initial response to the MoD for its FSTA programme in July 2001. Should
the consortium be successful, Cobham will have an equal shareholding with EADS, Halliburton
Brown & Root, Rolls-Royce and Thales. AirTanker has proposed the Airbus A330 aircraft to
replace the existing VC10 and Tri-Star tanker fleets with up to 20 contractor owned aircraft
under a public private partnership (PPP) contract worth approximately £9bn. If this major
opportunity is secured, FR Aviation and its subsidiaries will undertake conversion of the aircraft
to the tanker role and through life maintenance at the main operating base for the projected 25
plus years of the programme.

The company continues to pursue other major MoD opportunities, particularly the military flying
training services (MFTS) for which it has already begun to establish partnering agreements.
Overseas opportunities in the operations and engineering support fields are being carefully
targeted where these fit within FR Aviation group’s core strategy for expansion through
excellence in integrated aviation services.  

Allan Cook, Chief Executive

21 March 2002

A DHFS helicopter operated by the newly

established FB Heliservices
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Financial Review

Financial Record

The group's record of double digit growth in turnover, underlying operating profit,

underlying profit before tax, underlying earnings per share and dividend has continued in

2001. Underlying average annual double digit growth has been achieved over the last 18

years and the figures below show our performance over the last five years. Underlying

figures exclude amortisation of goodwill, integration costs and exceptional items.

Average annual growth 

over last five years 

%

Turnover + 22.3

Underlying operating profit including joint ventures + 20.5

Underlying profit before tax + 18.6

Underlying earnings per share + 18.5

Dividends per share + 15.0

Turnover Analysis Following 11 September last year, a number of shareholders expressed interest in the make up of the company's

turnover profile. The table below analyses the turnover into the various end market categories of which the military

market remains the largest.

2001 2000

% %

Military 44 47

Commercial Aerospace 17 15

General Aviation 5 3

Outsourcing – non military 11 9

Government – non military 6 7

Industrial, including Westwind 12 14

Marine/Space 5 5

Acquisitions A number of businesses were acquired during 2001 by our avionics business segment. The cash cost of these

acquisitions amounted to £60.7m;  in addition, net overdrafts amounting to £0.5m were assumed and loan notes to

the value of £1.7m we re issued. Equity to the value of £7.3m was also issued in part co n s i d e ration for the Omniple ss

business.  Deferred and contingent consideration of a further £22.6m may become payable over the period to 2006

depending upon certain financial results.

Turnover from acquired businesses in 2001 amounted to £32.2m on which underlying operating profit of £6.3m was

generated. Satisfactory results have been achieved from the Power and Control business acquired at the end of

2000. As stated in the Interim Report issued in September 2001, this business is being integrated with the Flight

Refuelling sub-group and a widespread integration programme was initiated in January 2001 to ensure that

maximum benefit from the acquisition is achieved. The programme is forecast to cost £8.0m and is planned to be

completed by the end of 2002. These costs totalled £4.1m in 2001.

Results Once again the group's performance is characterised by a combination of organic growth and acceptable returns

from businesses acquired in the year.

Giles Irwin 

Group Financial Director
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Results continued Group turnover increased by 27.0% to £721.8m (2000 - £568.4m). Excluding amortisation of goodwill of £11.8m 

(2000 - £4.8m) and integration costs of £4.1m (2000 - £nil) group operating profit increased by 20.8% to £112.1m

(2000 - £92.8m) and the share of operating profit from joint ventures before goodwill amortisation of £0.1m 

(2000 - £0.1m) grew to £5.1m (2000 - £4.3m). Selling and distribution costs increased as a percentage of turnover

from 4.6% to 5.0%, whilst administration expenses (excluding goodwill amortisation) as a percentage of turnover

increased from 7.5% to 7.8%.

Profit on ordinary activities before tax amounted to £87.5m (2000 - £89.0m). The increased underlying profit of

£103.5m (2000 - £90.2m) has been offset by higher amortisation of goodwill of £11.9m (2000 - £4.9m), integration

co sts of £4.1m (2000 - £nil) and exceptional items of £nil (2000 - £3.7m). Underlying profit befo re tax (which exc l u d e s

the amortisation of goodwill, integration costs and exceptional items) of £103.5m (2000 - £90.2m) was 14.7% higher

than in 2000.

The net interest cost, including those of joint ventures, of £13.7m (2000 - £6.9m) was significantly higher as a result

of the investment in new businesses. The impact was more marked in the year as the Power and Control business

was acquired on 29 December 2000 and the major new acquisitions in 2001 fell in the early part of the year.

Taxation The tax charge of £27.7m (2000 - £26.4m) on the profit before tax of £87.5m (2000 - £89.0m) represents an effective

rate of 31.7% (2000 - 29.7%). Excluding the goodwill amortisation of £11.9m (2000 - £4.9m), the prior year tax credit

of £0.6m (2000 - £0.5m) and the exceptional profit of £nil (2000 - £3.7m) the effective rate for the year would be

28.5% (2000 - 29.8%). This adjusted tax charge is lower than the prevailing tax rates primarily because part of the

goodwill charge is an allowable expense for taxation and also because of the tax deduction on the contribution to

the Qualifying Employee Share Trust ('QUEST'). This is described in more detail in note 15 to the financial

statements. A full provision for deferred taxation has not been made for certain timing differences which are not

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. If a full provision had been adopted, the charge for this year would 

not have been different. The amount of deferred taxation unprovided for is £2.9m (2000 - £2.9m).

Dividends The directors are recommending a final ordinary dividend of 16.33p (2000 - 14.20p) which represents an increase of

15.0% on last year. If approved by shareholders, this will result in a total dividend of 23.23p (2000 - 20.20p). This is

also a 15.0% increase over 2000.

The total ordinary dividend for the year will absorb £23.6m (2000 - £20.2m) leaving profit retained of £36.0m 

(2000 - £42.2m). The total dividend is covered 2.5 times by profit attributable to shareholders.

Earnings per Share The basic earnings per share amounted to 59.4p (2000 - 63.0p) whilst the fully diluted earnings per share was 

58.8p (2000 - 62.3p). However, adjusting for the £11.9m (2000 - £4.9m) amortisation of goodwill, the integration

costs of £4.1m (2000 - £nil) and the exceptional items of £3.7m in 2000, the underlying earnings per share 

increased by 17.4% to 75.4p (2000 - 64.2p).

Financing During 2001, the group financed its operations and its acquisitions from internally generated funds, the use of

borrowings and equity. At the year end, the net debt of the group as defined by FRS 1 was £207.7m (2000 - £151.8m).

Included in this figure are all amounts owing under bank loans, debenture loans, finance leases and other

borrowings. This level of debt represents an increased gearing level of 65.7% (2000 - 56.2%). Net interest cover 

is at a prudent level of 7.4 times.
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Financing Our Australian subsidiaries have a number of operating leases for the provision of aircraft which are used to provide 

continued services to third parties under back-to-back contracts. The major customers are Qantas Airlink, Australian Air

Express and the Australian Government Customs Service. Of the £27.3m aircraft lease cost in 2001 (2000 - £16.4m)

these customers accounted for £20.6m of the total. The remainder of the costs emanated from back-to-back

contracts with other customers and the leasing of spare parts and engines.

The group had four main borrowings outstanding at the year end. These were:

(a)   a private placement of guaranteed senior notes. This placement raised US$50m in March 1996. The facility

comprises two series of notes for US$25m, one with an average life of seven years and the other with an

average life of ten years. These notes carry a fixed interest rate of 6.28% for the seven year notes and 6.42% 

for the ten year notes. The first principal repayment of US$5m was made in 2001. A further principal 

repayment of US$5m is due in 2002. 

(b)   a £90m syndicated multi currency credit agreement was entered into by the company on 3 December 1999. 

The borrowings carry a variable rate of interest. At the end of 2001 the full facility of £90m had been drawn

down. The facility is repayable in December 2002. 

(c)   a US$38m facility of which US$35.6m was drawn at 31 December 2001. The interest rate is currently variable.

The facility has been used to finance the acquisition and modification of two aircraft for the Australian

Coastwatch contract. This loan is being repaid in 55 monthly instalments with a final payment of US$16.9m 

at the end of the period.

(d)   a £90m club multi currency credit agreement was entered into by Cobham on 12 February 2001. The

borrowings carry a variable rate of interest. At the end of 2001 £60.6m had been drawn under this agreement.

The facility is repayable in full in the early part of February 2003.

Cash Flow High priority continues to be given to cash management throughout the group. 

The ability to reduce working capital as a financial goal has to be balanced with the need to deliver on time and 

to hold the necessary level of emergency stocks required under customer contracts. Working capital continued 

to increase in 2001 as one might expect in a growing business. Excluding the impact of acquisitions, there is an

increase in stocks of £10.6m. This is a much reduced level of increase than in the previous year. Due to the specific

requirements of a number of customers in 2001, a substantial amount of business was invoiced in the latter part of

2001. This gave rise to a very large increase in debtors of £38.4m (2000 - £13.0m). In addition there was a significant

reduction in the increase in creditors of £8.5m (2000 - £25.4m). 

The net cash outflow in respect of tangible and intangible fixed assets of £27.8m (2000 - £40.5m) was consistent

with the underlying investment made in the group's businesses over the last five years. The expenditure in 2000 

was affected by the acquisition of two new aircraft at a cost of £23.3m. These aircraft are being used on the

Australian Coastwatch contract.

Further information on the cash flows and movement in net debt of the group is given in notes 24, 25 and 26 of the

financial statements. A summary of the change in net debt is set out opposite.
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Cash Flow continued

2001 2000

£m £m

Operating Profit after integration costs of £4.1m (2000 - £nil) 96.2 88.0

Depreciation 26.1 20.8

Amortisation of goodwill and intangibles 12.3 4.8

Profit on sale of fixed assets (0.8) –

Net provisions for liabilities and charges (3.5) 0.1

Long term incentive plan 1.0 0.7

Increase in working capital (41.1) (14.1)

Cash inflow from Operating Activities after integration costs of £4.1m (2000 - £nil) 90.2 100.3

Net capital expenditure and financial investment (27.8) (40.5)

Net interest paid (12.4) (4.3)

Dividends paid (21.2) (18.2)

Tax paid (23.0) (24.1)

Net Cash Flow from Businesses 5.8 13.2

Net cash outflow for acquisitions and disposals (62.8) (87.7)

Shares issued – net of expenses 3.3 2.7

Debt of subsidiary undertakings acquired/disposed (1.1) (14.1)

Translation difference (1.1) (2.4)

Increase in Net Debt (55.9) (88.3)

Pensions The group has continued to comply with the requirements of SSAP 24 "Accounting for Pension Costs".

FRS 17 "Retirement Benefits" was issued in November 2000 and the information required by the transitional

disclosures of this standard is given in note 11 to the financial statements. The funding position of the group's

pension schemes on an FRS 17 valuation shows that, net of deferred tax, liabilities exceed assets by £4.7m.

Included within the balance sheet at 31 December 2001 is an amount of £15.1m which represents the pension asset,

net of deferred tax, on a SSAP 24 basis.

Foreign Exchange The group's policy is to reduce, or eliminate where practicable, foreign exchange risk. The pound/US dollar

exchange rate is the most important as far as Cobham is concerned. This is due to the level of US dollars which the

UK subsidiaries expect to receive from their business activities and to the level of investment in operating

companies based in the USA. Dollar denominated borrowings referred to in the financing section of this review help

to mitigate the foreign exchange risks faced by the group in this respect. All significant foreign exchange

transactions are approved by the parent company and, in addition to the borrowing structure, a number of financial

instruments are used to manage the foreign exchange position, such as forward rate contracts and options.

A number of new transactions were entered into during 2001, the most significant of which were the 

forward sale of: 

(a)   US$100m at rates between 1.4059 and 1.4399 during the period 2002 and 2004

(b)   US$1m each month from 2002 to 2005 at the rate of 1.3925

(c)   US$1.75m monthly to end August 2002 at rates between 1.41835 and 1.42035.

Prior to being acquired by Chelton, TEAM SA entered into a five year agreement to sell dollars in exchange for Euro.

At 31 December 2001, the outstanding commitment was to sell a total of up to $93m over the next four years on a

monthly basis in accordance with the following rate structure:

• if € 1 is over $1.112, then each $1 would generate €0.899

• if € 1 is under $1.112 but over $1, then each $1 would be sold at the prevailing spot rate

• if € 1 is under $1 but over $0.868, then each $1 would generate €1

• if € 1 is under $0.868, then each $1 would generate €1 plus the amount by which $1 was under €0.868.
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Foreign Exchange In addition, in 1997, Cobham agreed to swap US dollars for sterling at the ra te of 1.6263 over the period to 2012 with

continued US$111m of the commitment outstanding at 31 December 2001. Approx i m a te ly US$16m of the commitment ex i sts 

in 2002, US$53m from 2003 to 2006 with the balance of US$42m over the remaining 6 ye a rs. It is the gro u p ’s curre n t

belief that the net dollar re ceipts from its subsidiaries will exceed the level of the outstanding co m m i t m e n t .

Going Concern The group's finances are sound and the balance sheet remains strong and accordingly, after making enquiries, 

the directors have formed a judgement at the time of approving the financial statements that there is a reasonable

ex p e c tation that the company and the group as a whole have adequate re s o u rces to continue in operational ex i ste n ce

for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial

statements. 

Giles Irwin, Group Financial Director

21 March 2002
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Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements of the group

for the year ended 31 December 2001.

Dividends An interim dividend of 6.90p per ordinary share (2000 - 6.00p) was paid in December 2001. The directors are

recommending a final dividend of 16.33p per ordinary share (2000 - 14.20p) payable on 5 July 2002 to ordinary

shareholders on the register as at 7 June 2002, making a total ordinary dividend for the year of 23.23p 

(2000 - 20.20p). It is proposed that the retained profit of £36.0m be transferred to the profit and loss reserve.

Principal Activities The principal business of the group is the design and manufacture of equipment, specialised systems and

and Business components supplied primarily to the aerospace, defence, industrial and communications markets – and the

Review operation, maintenance and modification of aircraft, particularly in relation to special mission flight operations.

A review of the business, together with an indication of likely future developments, is included in the chairman’s

statement on pages 2 and 3, the review of operations on pages 6 to 23 and the financial review on pages 24 to 28.

Board of Directors The current directors are named on page 29. They held office throughout the year. Sir Michael Knight was also a

director until his retirement on 28 November 2001.

The directors retiring by rotation at the annual general meeting are The Lord Rockley, G F Page and J D M Smith.

Mr Page and Mr Smith, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. The Lord Rockley, who has

indicated his intention to retire from office at the annual general meeting, will not seek re-appointment.

G F Page has a service contract with the company which is due to expire in November 2003. J D M Smith does not

have a service contract.

Directors’ Interests None of the directors is or was materially interested in any significant contract during or at the end of the financial

year particulars of which are required to be disclosed by the Companies Act 1985 or the Financial Services

Authority’s Listing Rules.

Details of directors’ share interests and of their rights to subscribe for shares are shown in the remuneration

report on pages 38 to 40.

Corporate This statement describes how the company has applied the principles of good governance set out in section 1 of

Governance the combined code on corporate governance annexed to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority 

(“the Code”); it also co n tains a sta tement re g a rding co m p l i a n ce with the provisions set out in section 1 of the Code.

Directors: The Cobham board currently comprises the chairman, the chief executive, four other executive

directors and three non-executive directors of whom The Lord Rockley is recognised as the senior member. 

Short biographical notes in respect of each director are contained on pages 4 and 5 and these demonstrate 

a wide range of relevant experience.

Board members have access to the advice and services of the company secretary and, if required, independent

external advice at the company’s expense in connection with the furtherance of their duties as directors. No

external advice was sought during the year.

The board as a whole meets re g u l a r ly during the year to make and rev i ew major business decisions and to monito r

and test the operational performance of the group in accordance with the schedule of matters reserved by the

board for its decision. There is regular contact between meetings to progress the group’s business.

To assist in the discharge of its duties and responsibilities, the board has established a number of committees, the

most significant of which are the audit, remuneration, nomination and executive committees. Each committee has

its own terms of reference and meetings take place on a regular basis throughout the year save in the case of the

nomination committee, the meetings of which take place as required.
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C o r p o ra te The re s p e c t i ve ro les and responsibilities of the chairman and chief exe c u t i ve are cle a r ly understood and the

G ove r n a n ce b o a rd ’s policy is that these two positions should normally be held by diffe rent people. In addition to his other duties,

continued t h e chairman is re s p o n s i b le for carrying out a formal rev i ew of the board ’s effe c t i ve n e ss on an annual basis.

The board and its committees receive relevant and appropriate information relating to the business to be

transacted in sufficient time to enable it to be fully considered. Additional information is made available to all

directors if requested and reports in respect of the group’s activities and performance for those months during

which a meeting of the board is not scheduled to take place are routinely circulated to all directors.

The nomination committee is responsible for recommending new directors, both executive and non-executive, 

to the board. In appropriate cases recruitment consultants are used to assist in the process and normally no offer

of a directorship is made before all board members have had a reasonable opportunity to meet the prospective

director concerned. The membership of the committee consists of G F Page (chairman), The Lord Rockley, 

J D M Smith and J W E d i n g ton. The co m m i t tee is curre n t ly considering the selection of an appro p r i a te independent

n o n - exe c u t i ve dire c tor to re p l a ce The Lord Rockley who is due to re t i re at the fo r t h coming annual general meeting.

The executive committee develops the group’s strategy for board approval, makes recommendations as to

acquisitions and divestments and reviews operational activities. Membership of the committee comprises all the

executive directors, with the exception of G F Page, and the chief executive is the committee’s chairman.

Non-executive directors are initially appointed for three years and, under the articles of association, all directors

are required to retire at least every three years. Directors who have reached the age of 70 are required to retire,

and not to seek re-appointment, at the annual general meeting following their seventieth birthday.

Directors’ remuneration: Information on the company’s policy with regard to executive directors’ remuneration,

the role and function of the remuneration committee, and details of the remuneration of each executive director

are contained in the remuneration report on pages 35 to 40. A committee of the board comprising executive

directors is responsible for determining the fees of the non-executive directors within the limits contained in the

articles of association.

Relations with shareholders: The company welcomes discussions with shareholders where practicable. During

the year the company made presentations to fund managers both in the UK and overseas and received a number

of visits. Presentations to analysts, fund managers and others were also made following the announcements of

the full and half year’s results and at other times during the year.

Shareholders have the opportunity to question the chairmen of the board and of the principal board committees 

at the company’s annual general meeting and also to receive at that meeting the chairman’s statement as to

significant developments during the year to date. Information relating to the level of proxies lodged at the 2001

annual general meeting was formally announced to shareholders after each resolution had been dealt with on 

a show of hands and was subsequently reported on the company’s website.

Accountability and audit: The chairman’s statement, the review of operations and the financial review on pages 

2 to 28 contain information relevant to an assessment of the company’s position and prospects. Statements

regarding the directors’ responsibilities for preparing the company’s financial statements and the auditors’

responsibilities for reporting on them are set out on pages 41 and 42. The directors’ going concern statement 

is set out on page 28.

The board is responsible for the group’s system of internal control the aim of which is to manage risks that are

s i g n i f i cant to the fulfilment of the gro u p ’s business objectives and to co n t r i b u te to the safe g u a rding of share h o l d e rs’

investment and the company’s assets. It is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the system.

However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business

objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks 

faced by the group. This process has been in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of the 

annual report and financial statements and accords with the guidance for directors on internal control issued by 

the Turnbull Committee. It comprises, among other things, risk management review workshops and an assurance

programme based around significant risks and key procedures/control processes. Integral to the process is the 

Group Internal Control Manual which contains comprehensive policies of a financial and non financial nature. The 

board has appointed a senior officer, the director of special projects, with particular responsibility for the 

operation of the system. During the year the group executive undertook a top-level review of significant risks on 

two occasions and risk management has been further embedded into the group’s management process through 

the adoption of a requirement for subsidiaries to carry out formal risk management assessments as part of the 

annual five year planning exercise. The board regularly reviews the effectiveness of the internal control process by 

means of reports either to it or to the audit committee. In addition, the audit committee receives and considers an 

annual report from the director of special projects and reports thereon to the board. The audit committee has, 

accordingly, conducted a review on behalf of the board of the effectiveness of the group’s system of internal 

control in respect of 2001.

The audit committee comprises The Lord Rockley (chairman), J D M Smith and J W Edington. Mr Smith and

Mr Edington are considered to be independent non-executive directors. The committee normally meets on three

occasions during the year and the auditors attend meetings twice yearly at which they present reports on internal

control and other matters. The group financial director attends all meetings but is not present throughout.

Relationships are such that, if there are any particular concerns, the auditors are able to approach the chairman

of the committee directly to air them.

Compliance statement: Throughout the year ended 31 December 2001 the company has complied with the

provisions set out in section 1 of the Code except as follows:

Code Provision A.2.1: The Lord Rockley is recognised as the senior non-executive director although he is no longer

considered to be independent in view of his length of service as a director.

Code Provision A.3.2: For the reason given above, The Lord Rockley is not considered to have been an independent

non-executive director during the year and, as a result, a majority of non-executives was not independent

throughout the year save in respect of the period from Sir Michael Knight’s retirement on 

28 November 2001 to the year end. The board believes that length of service is a positive attribute for a long term

business, providing continuity and giving a deeper understanding. However, the nomination committee is

considering the appointment of an independent non-executive director to replace The Lord Rockley who is due to

retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Code Provision B.1.7: For the reasons given in the remuneration report on page 36, the board does not have as an

objective the reduction of certain directors’ notice periods to one year or less.

Code Provisions B.2.1/2: The remuneration committee did not consist exclusively of independent non-executive

directors throughout the year for the reason given above.

The auditors have, as mentioned in their report on page 42, reviewed whether or not this statement reflects the

company’s compliance with the seven provisions of the Code specified for their review by the Financial 

Services Authority.

Share Capital Details of movements in the share capital of the company during the year are given in note 22 to the 

financial statements.

The company is not a close company within the meaning of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988.

C o r p o ra te  

G ove r n a n ce

continued
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Research and The group continues to invest in the important area of research and development. During the year the group

Development expended £28.2m (2000 - £21.6m) on non customer funded research and development.

The management of each of the group’s businesses is responsible for identifying and carrying out research and

development programmes which are suitable having regard to particular market and product needs.

Major Interests Major interests in the issued ordinary share capital of the company appearing in the register maintained in

in Shares accordance with Section 211 of the Companies Act 1985 as at 21 March 2002 were as follows:

Number of Percentage at

Shares Date of Notification

FMR Corp and Fidelity International Limited 8,466,373 8.39%

Sir Michael Cobham 5,071,062 5.02%

CGNU plc 4,602,206 4.56%

Scottish Widows Investment Partnership Limited 4,060,866 4.02%

Aegon Investment Management 3,386,577 3.36%

Standard Life Investments Limited 3,027,853 3.00%

Other than the above interests the directors are not aware of any notifiable interest in the issued ordinary share

capital of the company of 3% or more.

Employment The gro u p ’s employment policies include a commitment to equal opportunities re g a rd le ss of sex, ra ce, co lour, national

or ethnic origin, disability, and other forms of discrimination. With re g a rd to employees who become disabled, the policy

is to ta ke all re a s o n a b le steps, including re t raining, to ensure that they can remain in employ m e n t .

The importa n ce of employee deve lopment and training is re cognised and group businesses are re q u i red to enco u ra g e

e m p loyees to ta ke adva n tage of ava i l a b le and re levant training facilities and opportunities for adva n ce m e n t .

The process of employee involvement is different in each operating company and has been developed over the

years by local management working with employees in ways which suit their own needs in their particular

environment. This may involve the publishing of in-house newspapers, notice board announcements, management

briefings, meetings with locally elected committees of employees, the holding of social functions and the running

of sports and social clubs.

UK employees are given the opportunity to become shareholders in the company through the Cobham Savings

Related Share Option Scheme and the Cobham Share Incentive Scheme. Selected UK and overseas employees

may become shareholders through participation in the Cobham Executive Share Option Scheme.

Environment The group has adopted an environmental policy under which it is committed to meeting legislative requirements,

to the prevention of pollution and to the continuous improvement of its environmental performance.

The chief executive has been appointed as the main board member with overall environmental responsibility

whilst, at the operating company level, the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the environmental policy

lies with the appropriate subsidiary board.

During the year an environmental steering group was established. This group, which has written terms of

reference, is required, among other things, to make proposals as to the development of the environmental policy,

to co-ordinate action plans and to encourage environmental best practice. It reports to the chief executive.
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Environment The importance of environmental management systems (‘EMS’) in appropriate cases is recognised. During the

continued year a core EMS was implemented, and certification to ISO 14001 – the internationally recognised standard –

achieved, by Flight Refuelling Limited at its Wimborne site. The intention is to target implementation of this

system at all appropriate sites by 2004. Carleton Technologies Inc.’s premises at Orchard Park, New York also

achieved certification to ISO 14001 during the year.

A number of additional environmental initiatives were implemented by various group businesses during the year.

In the area of energy conservation these included the installation of a ‘soft-start’ on motors, the fitting of low

energy lighting and timers on equipment, the use of an energy maintenance programme and the utilisation of heat

generated by compressors for space heating. Water consumption has been reduced through the installation of

water management systems and the replacing of cooling towers with chiller units. As regards waste generation,

initiatives have included the re-use of packaging materials, the removal of cardboard and office paper from the

waste stream – followed by compaction and recycling – and improved oil management.

The collection of environmental performance data with regard to energy use, water consumption and the

generation of waste from a number of the group’s UK based businesses highlighted several areas where the data

provided was incomplete or not readily available. An objective for 2002 is therefore to improve monitoring systems

so as to ensure that data is complete and accurate; the number of companies covered will also be increased.

Other objectives for the current year include the improvement of environmental performance through the

upgrading of pollution prevention infrastructures and the raising of environmental awareness among employees. 

The group participates in various initiatives at industry level through its membership of The Society of British

Aerospace Companies Ltd. In particular, it is an active member of that organisation’s environmental special

interest group and is involved with the steering group established in connection with the Air Travel-Greener by

Design programme. The group is also involved in various activities at the local level including waste minimisation

groups, recycling initiatives and the provision of environment-oriented placements for undergraduates.

Creditor Payment Payment is generally made by group companies to their creditors in accordance with agreed terms of business 

Policy provided that those terms have been met. It is the policy of the parent company that all invoices are paid within 

30 days fo l lowing the end of the month in which the invo i ces are approved. The to tal amount of the parent co m p a n y ’s

trade creditors falling due within one year at 31 December 2001 represents 23 days’ (2000 - 25 days) worth as a

proportion of the total amount invoiced by suppliers during the year ended on that date.

Political and 

Charitable Gifts 2001 2000

Charitable £42,401 £51,332

No contributions were made to political organisations.

Auditors A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Annual General The company’s annual general meeting will be held at 12 noon on Wednesday, 12 June 2002 at Painters’ Hall, 

Meeting 9 Little Trinity Lane, London EC4V 2AD. The notice convening this meeting, together with an explanation of the

business to be conducted, is sent to shareholders separately with this report.

By order of the board

J M Pope, Secretary

21 March 2002
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The remuneration committee determines, among other things, the remuneration, benefits and terms and

conditions of service of the executive directors and makes recommendations to the board with regard to the

company’s policy on executive directors’ remuneration. The membership of the committee consists of 

J D M Smith (chairman), The Lord Rockley and J W Edington. Mr Smith and Mr Edington are considered to be

independent non-executive directors. The Lord Rockley is not considered to be an independent non-executive as a

result of his length of service as a director.

Remuneration The company’s policy is to recruit, motivate and retain executive directors of high calibre by rewarding them 

Policy with competitive salary and benefit packages. More specifically, the current strategy is to position base salaries at

the median of the market and to provide an opportunity to earn a total cash payment (i.e. base salary and annual

incentive) at the upper quartile for high performance. To assist it in the provision of appropriate packages, the

committee consults with the chairman and chief executive, who may be invited to attend its meetings, and has

access to external research on market trends from independent consultants. No director is involved in deciding his

own remuneration. The board, through the committee, will continue to consult with principal shareholders when it

is considering structural changes to its policy on executive directors’ remuneration.

The main elements of dire c to rs’ re m u n e ration are described in the para g raphs that fo l low. Remuneration info r m a t i o n

and details of directors’ interests in Cobham ordinary shares are set out in tables 1 to 6 on pages 37 to 40.

Basic Salary Basic salaries are reviewed annually. The committee takes into account internal and external advice and data from

a range of companies as well as personal and business performance.

Annual Bonus The company operates an annual cash bonus scheme for its executive directors. Bonuses are awarded by the

committee having regard to the performance of the group, the individual and, in the case of executive directors

with specific subsidiary company responsibilities, the performance of the relevant subsidiaries. Bonuses in

respect of the year under review were capped at 60% of basic salary save for A G Irwin whose bonus was capped at

100% of basic salary in view of his ineligibility, as a result of proximity to retirement, to receive an award during the

year under the Cobham Long Term Incentive Plan.

Pensions Executive directors may join the Cobham Executives Pension Plan (“the Plan”) at the invitation of the company. The

Plan is established under trust, contracted out of the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme and approved by the

Inland Revenue under the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988. All the executive directors, with the exception

of G C Cooper, who has a personal money-purchase pension scheme, are members of the Plan.

The Plan provides benefits for executive directors on final pay principles against a normal pension age of 60 with

retirement before that age being subject to actuarial reduction. Pensionable earnings are taken as the member’s

basic annual salary at each April, restricted where applicable to the earnings cap. The rate at which members are

required to contribute to the Plan is 7% of pensionable earnings. Annual bonus payments are not taken into

account when calculating pensionable earnings.

Retirement pension accrues at 1/30th of pensionable earnings for each year of service in the Plan with a further

1/60th of pensionable earnings for each year of pensionable service within the main Cobham staff pension plan. 

At retirement, members may commute a portion of their pension for a cash sum.

All pensions in payment relating to post April 1997 rights are increased in line with the retail price index (subject to

a minimum of 3% per annum and a maximum of 5% per annum) with the balance of pension being increased at

3% per annum.

On death in service, a lump sum of four times pensionable earnings is payable together with a spouse’s pension of

two thirds of the member’s prospective pension. On death after retirement, a spouse’s pension is paid at the same

rates as applied to the member’s pre commutation pension. Similar spouse’s pensions are payable on the death of

a deferred pensioner prior to retirement.

The company establishes funded, unapproved retirement benefit schemes by which additional retirement provision

is made on money purchase principles for each member whose entitlement under the Plan is restricted by the

earnings cap. Payments are made to these schemes on the basis of actuarial advice.

Remuneration Report
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Long Term The Cobham Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) was operated for the fifth time during the year under review. 

Incentive Plan and Under the LTIP, Cobham ordinary shares may be conditionally awarded to participants. However, they will

Share Schemes normally only be entitled to these shares in full at the end of a period of three years – known as the restricted

period – if, and to the extent that, certain company performance conditions are achieved. The rules of the LTIP

were amended at the company’s 2000 annual general meeting in various ways including the removal of a

requirement for awarded shares to be held in trust for a period of up to two years after the expiry of the restricted

period and the removal of the ability for participants to receive shares on a matching basis pro rata to investments

made by them in Cobham shares.

Awards under the LTIP were made during the year to G F Page, R H L Clark, G C Cooper, G E Roe and A E Cook.

The value of the awards made was limited to 100% of basic salary. The performance measure applicable to these

awards is total shareholder return subject to a minimum level of absolute growth in earnings per share of at least

3% per annum above the rate of inflation.

With regard to total shareholder return, each participant will be entitled to 100% of his awards if the company’s

return over the performance period results in it being ranked in the top quartile of a comparator group comprising

FTSE All Share companies in the aerospace and defence sector and the engineering and machinery sector. If the

co m p a n y ’s perfo r m a n ce is at the median, 30% of the awarded shares will ve st. Between these two levels, the award

will vest on a sliding scale. Participants will lose their awards if the company’s performance is below the median.

The restricted periods in respect of the awards made in 1997, 1998 and 1999 have now expired and, as the

performance conditions applicable to those awards have been achieved in full, the participants concerned are

conditionally entitled to receive all the underlying shares. The condition relates to the holding by trustees of the

shares in question for periods expiring five years after the award dates during which time the participant must,

subject to various exceptions, continue in employment with the group. The restricted period in respect of the 1999

awards expired after the year end.

The company grants share options from time to time under the Cobham Executive Share Option Scheme (1994).

Participants in the LTIP are not eligible to receive grants of options under this scheme.

Certain executive directors are also participants in the Cobham Savings Related Share Option Scheme and/or the

Cobham Share Incentive Scheme, both of which are all employee share schemes approved by the Inland Revenue.

Under the former, participants save a fixed monthly sum for three or five years and may use the sum generated by

their savings contracts to exercise options which are granted at a 20% discount to market price. Depending upon

the option period chosen, exercise can normally take place after three, five or seven years. Under the latter, the

total value of shares which may be allocated to any one employee must not exceed £3,000.

The LTIP and the above-mentioned share schemes have been approved by shareholders.

Service Contracts The board’s policy on setting notice periods for new directors is that these should not normally exceed one year. It

recognises, however, that it may be necessary in the case of new executive appointments to offer a longer initial

notice period which would subsequently reduce to one year after the expiry of that period.

The service contract of G F Page is due to expire on his 60th birthday in November 2003. It is the board’s current

intention that he will become non-executive chairman from that date. It has been agreed that A G Irwin’s service

contract will expire on his 60th birthday in July 2003 and that he will continue thereafter as an employee, but not a

director, of the company with responsibility for corporate development. R H L Clark is employed under a service

contract containing a notice period of two years. The board takes the view that the current notice periods for these

directors remain appropriate having regard to all the circumstances.

The service contracts of A E Cook, G C Cooper and G E Roe are terminable on one year’s notice.

The remuneration committee accepts and endorses the principle of mitigation of damages on early termination of

a service contract.
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Personal The committee’s approach with regard to personal shareholding is to encourage executive directors to acquire 

Shareholding and hold, over time, Cobham ordinary shares to the value of at least one year’s salary.

Non-executive Fees paid to non-executive directors are determined by a committee of the board comprising G F Page, A E Cook

Directors and A G Irwin. During the year under review, each non-executive director received a basic fee of £17,000 per

annum with an additional fee of £2,000 being paid to the chairmen of the audit and remuneration committees.

Non-executive directors do not participate in any of the company’s share schemes, pension schemes or bonus

arrangements nor do they have service contracts.

Table 1: The remuneration of the directors, including the highest paid director, was as follows:

Directors’

Emoluments Benefits Total

Salary and excluding excluding

Fees Bonus Pension Pension

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Sir Michael Knight 124† 135 – – 13 15 137 150

G F Page 350 285 210 171 22 21 582 477

A E Cook 300 – 180 – 17 – 497 –

A G Irwin 225 198 225 119 17 16 467 333

R H L Clark 180 160 90 96 13 13 283 269

G C Cooper 235* 237* 114 102 17 16 366 355

G E Roe 180 160 99 96 13 15 292 271

The Lord Rockley 19 18 – – – – 19 18

J D M Smith 19 18 – – – – 19 18

J W Edington 17 16 – – – – 17 16

Total Remuneration 1,649 1,227 918 584 112 96 2,679 1,907

Benefits include company car, petrol, personal telephone facilities, life assurance and medical cover.

The highest paid director was G F Page the aggregate of whose emoluments, gains on share options exercised and

company contributions to his funded unapproved retirement benefit scheme was £742,000 (2000 - £711,000). All

shares resulting from the exercise of options have been retained.

† Salary and fees for the period as chairman until retirement on 28 November 2001.

* The salary of G C Cooper includes a payment amounting to £30,000 (2000 - £53,000) made in lieu of additional

pension prov i s i o n .
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Table 2:

Directors’ Pensions Additional Pension

Normal Accrued Accrued earned in excess of

Date of Pension Pension Pension inflation over the

Birth Age at 1.1.01 at 31.12.01 year ended 31.12.01

G F Page 17.11.43 60 £33,660 pa £38,160 pa £3,389 pa

A E Cook 27.09.49 60 – £2,915 pa £2,915 pa

A G Irwin 27.07.43 60 £111,917 pa £135,000 pa £19,390 pa

R H L Clark 25.08.45 60 £86,140 pa £101,856 pa £12,873 pa

G E Roe 20.07.44 60 £10,710 pa £14,310 pa £3,247 pa

Under Inland Revenue regulations, members’ retirement benefits may stand to be reduced on account of retained

benefits from previous employments.

Inflation has been taken at 3.3% being the statutory increase to deferred pensions over 2000/2001.

Transfer values payable from the Plan are calculated in accordance with Section 4 “Minimum Cash Equivalent” of

Guidance Note 11 issued by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

G F Page, A E Cook and G E Roe are subject to the Inland Revenue capping rules and the following amounts, which

are taxable benefits, relate to funded unapproved retirement benefit schemes:

2001 2000

£000 £000

G F Page 131 86

A E Cook 88 –

G E Roe 38 34

In the case of G C Cooper, contributions totalling £28,000 (2000 - £16,000) were made into his personal money

purchase pension scheme.

Table 3(a): The interests of the directors and their families in Cobham plc’s ordinary shares were:

Directors’ Share 

Interests Options over

Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares

At 1.1.01 At 31.12.01 At 1.1.01 At 31.12.01

G F Page 182,591 227,321 8,645 6,125

A E Cook – 31,480 – 1,660

A G Irwin 134,956 142,936 8,110 5,592

R H L Clark 98,030 114,258 2,939 2,939

G C Cooper 158,861 186,781 2,535 1.695

G E Roe 44,714 61,399 2,465 2,465

The Lord Rockley 11,000 11,000 – –

J D M Smith 3,000 3,000 – –

J W Edington – – – –

The above interests are all beneficial and include interests in shares provisionally allocated under the Cobham

Long Term Incentive Plan.

The executive directors, in common with all UK employees of the group, are interested in the shares held within

the Cobham plc Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust (‘QUEST’) which was established during the year. The

QUEST is used in connection with the transfer of shares to participants in the Cobham Savings Related Share

Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2001, 323,390 ordinary shares were held within the QUEST.
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Table 3(a): Interests at 21 March 2002, being a date not more than one month prior to the date of the notice convening the 

Directors’ Share annual general meeting, were the same as at 31 December 2001 save that the interests of G F Page and A G Irwin 

Interests had increased by 1,827 and 2,056 ordinary shares respectively upon the exercise of options under the Cobham 

continued Savings Related Share Option Scheme on 4 February 2002. In addition, the number of ordinary shares held within 

the QUEST had reduced to 16,631.

Table 3(b) Details of directors’ interests in options over Cobham plc’s ordinary shares granted under the Cobham Savings

Directors’ Share Related Share Option Scheme were:

Options Market

price at

Number of Options Exercise date of Date from

At During the year At price exercise which Expiry

1.1.01 Granted Exercised 31.12.01 – pence – pence exe rc i s a b le date

Sir Michael Knight 1,428 – – 1,428 483 – 1.2.02 1.8.02

846 – 846 – 691 1,075 – –

G F Page 3,239 – 3,239 – 183 1,075 – –

1,827 – – 1,827 239 – 1.2.02 1.8.02

268 – – 268 320 – 1.2.03 1.8.03

1,727 – – 1,727 483 – 1.2.04 1.8.04

623 – – 623 495 – 1.2.06 1.8.06

840 – – 840 691 – 1.2.05 1.8.05

121 – – 121 836 – 1.2.06 1.8.06

– 719 – 719 840 – 1.2.09 1.8.09

A E Cook – 1,660 – 1,660 840 – 1.2.09 1.8.09

A G Irwin 2,898 – 2,898 – 183 1,075 – –

2,056 – – 2,056 239 – 1.2.02 1.8.02

292 – – 292 320 – 1.2.03 1.8.03

1,727 – – 1,727 483 – 1.2.04 1.8.04

564 – – 564 495 – 1.2.06 1.8.06

499 – – 499 691 – 1.2.03 1.8.03

74 – – 74 836 – 1.2.04 1.8.04

– 380 – 380 840 – 1.2.05 1.8.05

R H L Clark 2,019 – – 2,019 495 – 1.2.06 1.8.06

920 – – 920 836 – 1.2.06 1.8.06

G C Cooper 840 – 840 – 320 1,075 – –

1,695 – – 1,695 836 – 1.2.06 1.8.06

G E Roe 1,854 – – 1,854 495 – 1.2.04 1.8.04

611 – – 611 691 – 1.2.03 1.8.03

The market price of Cobham ordinary shares as at 31 December 2001 was 1,076.5p per share and the closing

price range during the year was 842.5p to 1,266.0p.

No directors’ share options have lapsed in the year.
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Remuneration Report continued

Table 4: Exercise Options Gain

Gains made on date exercised £000

Directors’ Share Sir Michael Knight 13.2.01 846 3

Options G F Page 13.2.01 3,239 29

A G Irwin 13.2.01 2,898 26

G C Cooper 13.2.01 840 6

All options were granted under the Cobham Savings Related Share Option Scheme.

The aggregate gain made by the directors on the exercise of share options was £64,000 (2000 - £908,000).

Gains are calculated by reference to the middle market value of a Cobham ordinary share on the date of exercise.

All shares resulting from the exercise of share options during the year have in fact been retained by the directors.

Table 5: At Allocated At

Provisional 1.1.01 during year 31.12.01

Allocations G F Page 101,066 31,386 116,657

under The 15,795*

Cobham Long A E Cook – 26,903 26,903

Term Incentive A G Irwin 72,420 – 60,702

Plan 11,718*

R H L Clark 57,558 16,141 64,851

8,848*

G C Cooper 61,414 17,038 68,697

9,755*

G E Roe 40,789 16,141 53,863

3,067*

Awards were made under the Cobham Long Term Incentive Plan on 30 March 2001. The earliest date for

acquisition will normally be 30 March 2004. Shares may, however, in certain limited circumstances, such as death

or a change of control, be transferred on a date earlier than that specified. Shares marked with an asterisk were

provisionally allocated on a matching basis pro rata to investments by participants. The market value of a Cobham

ordinary share as at 30 March 2001 was 1,157.5p.

Table 6: Allocated Locked-in value

Allocations under during year per share £†

The Cobham Share G F Page 66 11.55

Incentive Scheme A G Irwin 82 11.55

R H L Clark 87 11.55

G E Roe 44 11.55

† The “locked-in” value is the market value on 3 July 2001 being the date of allocation.
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the report of the auditors set out over, is made

with a view to distinguishing for shareholders the respective responsibilities of the directors and of the auditors in

relation to the financial statements.

The directors are required by the Companies Act 1985 to prepare financial statements for each financial year

which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group as at the end of the financial

year and of the profit or loss for the financial year.

The directors consider that in preparing the financial statements on pages 43 to 73 the company has used

appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and

estimates and that all accounting standards which they consider to be applicable have been followed. The financial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The directors have responsibility for ensuring that the company keeps accounting records which disclose with

reasonable accuracy the financial position of the company and which enable them to ensure that the financial

statements comply with the Companies Act 1985.

The directors have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the

assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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To the Members of We have audited the financial statements which comprise the profit and loss account, the balance sheets, the 

Cobham plc cash flow statement, the statement of total recognised gains and losses and the related notes, including directors’

emoluments, directors’ pension and directors’ share interests included in the remuneration report, which have

been prepared under the historical cost convention (as modified by the revaluation of certain fixed assets) and the

accounting policies set out in the statement of accounting policies.

Respective The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with

Responsibilities of applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities.

Directors and 

Auditors Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory

requirements, United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board and the Listing Rules of

the Financial Services Authority.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly

prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report

is not consistent with the financial statements, if the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have

not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law or the

Listing Rules regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider the implications for our report if we

become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. The other

information comprises only the directors’ report, the chairman’s statement, the operating and financial review and

the corporate governance statement.

We rev i ew whether the co r p o ra te gove r n a n ce sta tement re f lects the co m p a n y ’s co m p l i a n ce with the seve n

p rovisions of the Combined Code specified for our rev i ew by the Listing Rules, and we report if it does not. We are

not re q u i red to consider whether the board ’s sta tement on internal co n t rol cove rs all risks and co n t rols or to fo r m

an opinion on the effe c t i ve n e ss of the gro u p ’s co r p o ra te gove r n a n ce pro ce d u res or its risk and co n t rol pro ce d u re s .

Basis of Audit We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit 

Opinion includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in

the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the

company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we co n s i d e re d

n e ce ssary in order to provide us with sufficient ev i d e n ce to give re a s o n a b le ass u ra n ce that the financial sta te m e n t s

a re free from material missta tement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or erro r. In forming our opinion

we also eva l u a ted the ove rall adequacy of the pre s e n tation of information in the financial sta te m e n t s .

Opinion In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group

at 31 December 2001 and of the profit and cash flows of the group for the year then ended and have been properly

prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Southampton

21 March 2002

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Accounting Policies

Accounting The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards under the 

Convention historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain fixed assets. Compliance with SSAP 19

“Accounting for Investment Properties” requires departure from the requirements of the Companies Act 1985

relating to depreciation and an explanation of the departure is given in the tangible fixed assets accounting policy

note below.

Basis of The group financial statements include the financial statements of the parent company and of all its 

Consolidation subsidiaries made up to the end of the financial year. Joint ventures have been accounted for using the gross

equity method in accordance with FRS 9 “Associates and Joint Ventures”.

Businesses acquired are accounted for as acquisitions.

Turnover Turnover is based on sales value exclusive of value added tax together with the sales value of work done on long

term contracts. Sales within the group are excluded.

Deferred Taxation Provision is made for deferred taxation, using the liability method, where there is a reasonable probability that it

will become payable within the foreseeable future.

Intangible Fixed Goodwill arising on acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures made after 1 January 1998 and 

Assets expenditure on other intangible fixed assets comprising patents, licences and trade marks is capitalised and 

amortised on a st raight line basis over est i m a ted useful lives of up to 20 ye a rs. These periods have been dete r m i n e d

after taking into account the nature of the intangible assets acquired and the markets in which these intangible 

assets operate.

In accordance with the group’s accounting policy prior to the introduction of FRS 10, goodwill arising on

acquisitions prior to 1 January 1998 has been written off to reserves, but will be charged to the profit and loss

account on any subsequent disposal of the business to which it is related.

Tangible Fixed Freehold land and investment properties are not depreciated. Other fixed assets are depreciated on a 

Assets straight line basis to their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives. These lives are as follows:

Freehold buildings – 50 years

Leasehold properties – The period of the lease

Other fixed assets – 3 to 15 years

I n ve stment properties are included in the balance sheet at open market value. In acco rd a n ce with SSAP 19,

i n ve stment properties are revalued annually and the aggre g a te surplus or deficit is tra n s fe r red to revaluation re s e r ve ,

and no provision is made for depreciation of freehold properties. This departure from the re q u i rements of the

Companies Act 1985, which re q u i res all properties to be depre c i a ted, is, in the opinion of the dire c to rs, nece ssary fo r

the financial sta tements to show a true and fair view in acco rd a n ce with applica b le accounting sta n d a rd s .

The depreciation (which would, had the provisions of the Act been followed, have reduced profit for the year) is only

one of the factors reflected in the annual valuation and the amount attributable to this factor cannot reasonably be

separately identified or quantified.

Investments Investments are stated at cost less any provision for permanent diminution in value.
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Accounting Policies continued

Investment in Investment in own shares represents shares held in the Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust (QUEST), 
Own Shares which are shown at their estimated recoverable amount, being the option price of the shares payable by the

employee. The amounts contributed to the QUEST in excess of the option price are charged against reserves. 
The excess of the option price over the nominal value of the shares has been taken to the share premium account.

Aircraft Engine Expenditure is capitalised when it is incurred on aircraft engine overhauls and this fixed asset addition is 
Overhaul depreciated over its useful economic life.
Expenditure

Research and Research and development expenditure not chargeable to customers is written off as incurred.
Development

Finance Leases Where assets are financed by lease agreements that give rights approximating to ownership (finance leases), the
assets are treated as if they had been purchased outright and the corresponding leasing commitments are shown
as an obligation under finance leases. The relevant assets are depreciated on the basis of expected utilisation over
the shorter of the life of the contract on which they are employed or the life of the lease. Lease payments are
treated as consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest is charged to the profit and loss account.

Operating Leases Operating lease payments for assets leased from third parties are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Stocks Stocks and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost, which includes an appropriate proportion of productive
overheads, and net realisable value.

Payments received and receivable on account of work in progress are deducted from the cost of the work carried
out at the balance sheet date to the extent of the valuation of the work done.

Foreign Currencies Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction or,
where forward cover contracts have been arranged, at the contracted rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denoted
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date or at a contractual rate
if applicable and any exchange differences arising are taken to the profit and loss account.

For consolidation purposes the assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures are
translated at the closing exchange rates. Profit and loss accounts of such undertakings are consolidated at the
average rates of exchange during the year. Exchange differences arising on these translations are taken to reserves.

Pensions The cost of pensions in respect of the group’s defined benefit schemes is charged to the profit and loss account so
as to spread the cost of pensions over the service lives of employees. Actuarial surpluses and deficits are spread
forward over the average remaining service life of employees. The pension cost is assessed in accordance with the
advice of qualified actuaries.

Financial The group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures to fluctuations in interest and foreign 
Instruments exchange rates. Derivative instruments utilised by the group include currency and interest rate swaps, interest

rate caps, forward rate agreements and forward currency contracts. Receipts and payments on interest rate
instruments are recognised on an accruals basis, over the life of the instruments. Finance costs associated with
debt issuances are charged to the profit and loss account over the life of the instruments.

Gains and losses on foreign currency swaps and forward contracts are recognised on the maturity of the
underlying transaction.

The more significant financial instruments of the group are disclosed in note 30 of the financial statements.



Turnover: group and share of joint ventures 746.6 746.6 585.9 585.9

Less: share of joint ventures’ turnover (24.8) (24.8) (17.5) (17.5)
––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––

Group Turnover
(continuing operations £689.6m, 
acquisitions £32.2m) 721.8 – 1 721.8 568.4 – 568.4

Cost of sales (517.4) (4.1)† (521.5) (406.8) – (406.8)

Gross profit 204.4 (4.1) 200.3 161.6 – 161.6
Selling and distribution costs (36.0) – (36.0) (26.1) – (26.1)
Administrative expenses (56.3) (11.8)* (68.1) (42.7) (4.8)* (47.5)

Group Operating Profit
Continuing operations 105.8 (12.9) 92.9
Acquisitions 6.3 (3.0) 3.3

––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––

112.1 (15.9) 2 96.2 92.8 (4.8) 88.0

Share of operating profit in joint ventures 5.1 (0.1)* 5.0 4.3 (0.1)* 4.2
––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––

117.2 (16.0) 101.2 97.1 (4.9) 92.2
Exceptional items – net profit on disposal
of subsidiaries and fixed assets
(continuing operations) – – 4 – – 3.7# 3.7

Interest receivable:
Group 5 3.1 2.9
Joint ventures 0.4 0.4

––––––––– –––––––––

3.5 – 3.5 3.3 – 3.3
Interest payable:
Group 5 (15.4) (8.1)
Joint ventures (1.8) (2.1)

––––––––– –––––––––

(17.2) – (17.2) (10.2) – (10.2)

Profit on Ordinary Activities before Taxation 103.5 (16.0) 87.5 90.2 (1.2) 89.0
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 6 (27.7) (26.4)

Profit on Ordinary Activities after Taxation
before Minority Interest 59.8 62.6

Minority interest (equity interest) (0.2) (0.2)

Profit on Ordinary Activities after Taxation
attributable to Shareholders 59.6 62.4

Dividends (including non equity) 8 (23.6) (20.2)

Profit Retained for the Year 23 36.0 42.2

Earnings per Ordinary Share
– basic 9 59.4p 63.0p
– fully diluted 9 58.8p 62.3p
– underlying 9 75.4p 64.2p

There is no material difference between the results disclosed above and the results on an unmodified historical cost basis.

† Integration costs are described in note 3.
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Consolidated Profit  and Loss Account 
for the year ended 31 December 2001

Before Before
goodwill Goodwill goodwill Goodwill

amortisation amortisation* amortisation amortisation*
& integration & integration & exceptional & exceptional

costs costs† Total 2001 items items# Total 2000
£m £m Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m



Page 46 Cobham plc Annual Report & Accounts 2001

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 31 December 2001

2001 2000
Notes £m £m £m £m

Fixed Assets
Intangible assets 12 243.9 165.3
Tangible assets 13 191.0 186.6
Investments in joint ventures:
Share of gross assets 46.2 42.5
Share of gross liabilities (38.5) (38.5)
Goodwill 1.5 1.6

–––––––––– ––––––––––

14 9.2 5.6
Investment in own shares 15 1.4 –

–––––––––– ––––––––––

445.5 357.5

Current Assets
Stocks 16 143.6 124.0
Debtors:
Amounts falling due within one year 17 176.5 133.5
Amounts falling due after more than one year 17 21.0 20.0

Investments 18 0.1 0.1
Cash at bank and in hand 43.8 28.5

–––––––––– ––––––––––

385.0 306.1
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings 19 (120.2) (105.5)
Other creditors 19 (197.8) (172.3)

–––––––––– ––––––––––

(318.0) (277.8)
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Net Current Assets 67.0 28.3

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 512.5 385.8

Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings 20 (131.4) (74.9)
Other creditors 20 (12.3) (5.4)

–––––––––– ––––––––––

(143.7) (80.3)
Provisions for Liabilities and Charges 21 (51.9) (34.6)

316.9 270.9

Capital and Reserves including non equity interests
Called up share capital 22 25.2 24.8
Share premium account 23 71.0 56.8
Revaluation reserve 23 1.7 1.7
Other reserve 23 1.3 0.8
Profit and loss account 23 216.9 186.2

Shareholders’ Funds 316.1 270.3
Minority interest (equity) 0.8 0.6

316.9 270.9

These financial statements were approved by a duly appointed and authorised committee of the board on 21 March 2002 and were signed
on the board’s behalf by:

G F Page
A G Irwin
Directors
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Parent Company Balance Sheet 
as at 31 December 2001

2001 2000
Notes £m £m £m £m

Fixed Assets
Tangible assets 13 4.5 5.7
Investment in group undertakings 14 65.4 27.2
Investment in own shares 15 1.4 –

–––––––––– ––––––––––

71.3 32.9

Current Assets
Debtors:
Amounts falling due within one year 17 35.1 84.9
Amounts falling due after more than one year 17 525.2 416.2

Investments 18 0.1 0.1
Cash at bank and in hand 7.8 5.5

–––––––––– ––––––––––

568.2 506.7
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings 19 (126.6) (124.7)
Other creditors 19 (28.3) (28.4)

–––––––––– ––––––––––

(154.9) (153.1)
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Net Current Assets 413.3 353.6

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 484.6 386.5

Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings 20 (99.0) (30.1)

Provisions for Liabilities and Charges 21 – (0.3)

385.6 356.1

Capital and Reserves including non equity interests
Called up share capital 22 25.2 24.8
Share premium account 23 71.0 56.8
Special reserve 23 43.6 43.6
Other reserve 23 1.3 0.8
Profit and loss account 23 244.5 230.1

Shareholders’ Funds 385.6 356.1

These financial statements were approved by a duly appointed and authorised committee of the board on 21 March 2002 and were signed
on the board’s behalf by:

G F Page
A G Irwin
Directors



Cash inflow from operating activities 24 90.2 100.3
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 26a (12.4) (4.3)
Taxation (23.0) (24.1)
Capital expenditure and financial investment 26b (27.8) (40.5)
Acquisitions and disposals 26c (62.8) (87.7)
Equity dividends paid (21.2) (18.2)
Management of liquid resources 26d – 12.4
Financing 26e 72.0 66.2

Increase in Cash 25 15.0 4.1

Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Net Debt

Increase in cash in the year 15.0 4.1
Increase in debt and lease financing (68.7) (63.5)
Decrease in liquid resources † – (12.4)
Loans of subsidiary undertakings acquired (1.1) (14.2)
Loans of subsidiary undertakings disposed – 0.1
Translation difference (1.1) (2.4)

Movement in Net Debt in the year (55.9) (88.3)
Net Debt at 1 January (151.8) (63.5)

Net Debt at 31 December 25 (207.7) (151.8)

† Liquid resources includes short term deposits of less than one year and corporate investments.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31 December 2001

2001 2000
Notes £m £m

2001 2000
Notes £m £m
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Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
for the year ended 31 December 2001

Group Parent Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

Notes £m £m £m £m

Profit Attributable to Shareholders 59.6 62.4 40.1 184.4
Currency translation differences on foreign currency 
net investments 23 (3.2) (1.9) – –

Total Recognised Gains relating to the year 56.4 60.5 40.1 184.4

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds
for the year ended 31 December 2001

Group Parent Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

Notes £m £m £m £m

Profit Attributable to Shareholders 59.6 62.4 40.1 184.4
Dividends 8 (23.6) (20.2) (23.6) (20.2)

36.0 42.2 16.5 164.2

Currency translation differences on foreign currency 
net investments 23 (3.2) (1.9) – –

New share capital subscribed:
nominal value 22 0.4 0.1 0.4 0.1
premium on share issues 23 13.7 2.6 13.7 2.6

Long term incentive plan 23 1.0 0.7 1.0 0.7
Goodwill written back on sale of subsidiaries 4 – 5.1 – –
Contribution to the QUEST 15 (2.1) – (2.1) –

Net addition to shareholders’ funds 45.8 48.8 29.5 167.6
Shareholders’ funds as at 1 January 270.3 221.5 356.1 188.5

Shareholders’ Funds at 31 December 316.1 270.3 385.6 356.1

Note: Shareholders’ funds include non equity interests.



1 Segmental Analysis

Manufacturing Flight Operations
and Group Avionics and Services Total

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
By Class of Business £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Turnover
Total 322.3 264.5 225.9 164.8 220.4 160.1 768.6 589.4
Less share of joint ventures – – – – (24.8) (17.5) (24.8) (17.5)
Less inter-segmental (12.4) (2.6) (1.6) (0.9) (8.0) – (22.0) (3.5)

Turnover to third parties 309.9 261.9 224.3 163.9 187.6 142.6 721.8 568.4

Operating Profit
Group 41.5 46.5 42.1 32.1 12.6 9.4 96.2 88.0
Share of joint ventures – – – – 5.0 4.2 5.0 4.2

Group Operating Profit 41.5 46.5 42.1 32.1 17.6 13.6 101.2 92.2
Goodwill amortisation 4.7 1.9 5.6 1.9 1.6 1.1 11.9 4.9
Integration costs 4.1 – – – – – 4.1 –

Underlying Operating Profit 50.3 48.4 47.7 34.0 19.2 14.7 117.2 97.1

Net Operating Assets 316.7 248.7 141.6 117.6 66.3 56.4 524.6 422.7

Net Debt (207.7) (151.8)

Net Assets 316.9 270.9

In 2000 an exceptional profit of £3.7m arose in the Manufacturing and Group segment and is not included above.

United Other EU United Rest of the
Kingdom Countries States World Total

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
By Geographical Segment £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Turnover to Third Parties
By destination – group 206.1 176.0 117.2 86.4 234.6 205.0 188.7 118.5 746.6 585.9
Less share of joint ventures (24.8) (17.5) – – – – – – (24.8) (17.5)

Total 181.3 158.5 117.2 86.4 234.6 205.0 188.7 118.5 721.8 568.4

By origin – group 349.4 304.1 50.5 28.3 220.9 179.3 125.8 74.2 746.6 585.9
Less share of joint ventures (24.8) (17.5) – – – – – – (24.8) (17.5)

Total 324.6 286.6 50.5 28.3 220.9 179.3 125.8 74.2 721.8 568.4

Operating Profit
Group 53.8 56.2 5.8 3.1 28.7 25.0 7.9 3.7 96.2 88.0
Share of joint ventures 4.8 4.2 0.2 – – – – – 5.0 4.2

Group Operating Profit 58.6 60.4 6.0 3.1 28.7 25.0 7.9 3.7 101.2 92.2

Net Operating Assets 302.9 275.5 28.9 13.2 138.4 103.6 54.4 30.4 524.6 422.7

Net Debt (207.7) (151.8)

Net Assets 316.9 270.9

In 2000 an exceptional profit of £4.7m arose in the United Kingdom segment and an exceptional loss of £1.0m in the United States
segment. These items are not included in the above table.

Page 50 Cobham plc Annual Report & Accounts 2001

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Operating Profit

2001 2000
£m £m

The operating profit of £96.2m (2000 – £88.0m) is after charging:
Depreciation – owned assets 25.9 20.7
Depreciation – under finance leases 0.2 0.1
Amortisation  – goodwill 11.8 4.8
Amortisation – other intangible assets 0.5 –
Hire of plant and machinery – aircraft 27.3 16.4
Hire of plant and machinery – other 1.7 2.5
Other operating lease rentals 2.4 1.8
Research and development 28.2 21.6

Continuing Acquired Total
Operations Operations 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Cost of sales 500.9 20.6 521.5 406.8
Selling and distribution costs 33.4 2.6 36.0 26.1
Administrative expenses 62.4 5.7 68.1 47.5

Administrative expenses for acquired operations include amortisation of goodwill totalling £3.0m (2000 - £1.4m).

Auditors’ remuneration in respect of audit services to the group amounted to £0.6m (2000 - £0.5m) and in respect of the parent
company amounted to £54,000 (2000 - £48,000).

Remuneration payable to the auditors for non audit services provided to the parent company and its UK subsidiaries amounted to £0.5m
(2000 - £0.5m). This comprised taxation services £0.4m (2000 - £0.2m) and acquisition/disposal related services £0.1m (2000 - £0.3m).

3 Integration Costs

Following the acquisition of the Power and Control business of BAE SYSTEMS at the end of 2000, costs of £4.1m have been incurred in
respect of the integration of the business with various parts of the Flight Refuelling sub-group.

4 Exceptional Items

In 2000 the group disposed of fixed assets (profit £5.6m) and subsidiary undertakings (loss £1.9m). The loss of £1.9m included the write
back of goodwill of £5.1m.

5 Net Interest (group)

2001 2000
£m £m £m £m

Interest receivable 3.1 2.9
Interest payable:

Bank loans and overdrafts (12.7) (6.3)
Other borrowings (2.7) (1.8)

––––––––– –––––––––

(15.4) (8.1)

(12.3) (5.2)

6 Tax on Profit on Ordinary Activities

2001 2000
£m £m

UK corporation tax 13.8 17.1
Deferred taxation 4.2 1.1
Overseas taxation 9.2 7.9
Prior year (current and deferred) (0.6) (0.5)
Share of joint ventures’ tax 1.1 0.8

27.7 26.4

Excluding the goodwill amortisation of £11.9m (2000 - £4.9m), the prior year tax credit of £0.6m (2000 - £0.5m) and the exceptional profit
of £nil (2000 - £3.7m), the effective rate for the year would be 28.5% (2000 - 29.8%). This adjusted tax charge is lower than the prevailing
rates because part of the goodwill charge is an allowable expense for tax purposes and also because of the tax deduction on the
contribution to the Qualifying Employee Share Trust, which is described in more detail in note 15 to the financial statements.
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7 Profit Attributable to Shareholders
In accordance with the concession granted under Section 230(1) of the Companies Act 1985, the profit and loss account of Cobham plc
has not been separately presented in these financial statements. The profit attributable to shareholders dealt with in the financial
statements of Cobham plc is £40.1m (2000 - £184.4m). In 2000, the parent company’s profit before tax included a profit of £124.8m as a
result of the sale to a group company of the shares in two of its directly owned subsidiaries at market value. The profit was eliminated
from the group results on consolidation.

8 Dividends

2001 2000
£m £m

Dividends on ordinary shares
Interim paid of 6.90p per share (2000 - 6.00p) 7.0 6.0
Proposed final of 16.33p per share (2000 - 14.20p) 16.6 14.2

23.6 20.2

Dividends include £1,182 (2000 - £1,182) paid in respect of non equity second cumulative preference shares (note 22).

9 Earnings per Ordinary Share

2001 2000
Weighted Weighted

average average
number of Per-share number of Per-share

Earnings shares amount Earnings shares amount
£m million pence £m million pence

Basic Earnings per Share (EPS)
Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 59.6 100.3 59.4 62.4 99.0 63.0
Effect of dilutive securities
Options – 0.8 – 0.9
Long term incentive plan – 0.3 – 0.3

Fully Diluted EPS
Adjusted earnings 59.6 101.4 58.8 62.4 100.2 62.3

Underlying earnings per share excluding goodwill amortisation, integration costs and exceptional profit:

Basic EPS 59.6 100.3 59.4 62.4 99.0 63.0
Effect of goodwill amortisation 11.9 11.9 4.9 4.9
Effect of exceptional profit – – (3.7) (3.7)
Effect of integration costs 4.1 4.1 – –

Underlying EPS
Adjusted earnings 75.6 100.3 75.4 63.6 99.0 64.2

The calculation of earnings per ordinary share has been based on £59.6m (2000 - £62.4m), being the profit after taxation, minority
interests and preference dividend, and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding the weighted effect of the 323,090
which were issued to the QUEST on 19 December 2001) in issue during the year, being 100,288,474 (2000 - 99,048,571).

For fully diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The group has two categories:

(i) those share options granted to employees where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the company’s ordinary
shares during the year, and

(ii) shares contingently allocated to directors under the Cobham Long Term Incentive Plan.

The calculation of fully diluted earnings per share has been based on £59.6m (2000 - £62.4m) being the profit after taxation, minority
interests and preference dividend and on the weighted average number of the dilutive potential ordinary shares (excluding the weighted
effect of the 323,090 which were issued to the QUEST on 19 December 2001) being 101,433,396 (2000 - 100,151,422).

In addition to the information required by FRS 14, the directors believe that it is helpful to calculate an underlying earnings per share
figure. The earnings per share on an underlying basis has been based on £75.6m (2000 - £63.6m), being the profit after taxation,
minority interest and preference dividend, adjusted by the exclusion of amortisation of goodwill, integration costs and the exceptional
items and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding the weighted effect of the 323,090 which were issued to the
QUEST on 19 December 2001) in issue during the year, being 100,288,474 (2000 - 99,048,571).
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10 Directors’ Emoluments
Details of directors’ remuneration and share options are set out in the remuneration report on pages 35 to 40.

11 Employees

2001 2000
Number Number

Average number of employees
United Kingdom 4,149 3,870
Other EU countries 658 389
United States 1,665 1,665
Rest of the world 1,351 1,032

7,823 6,956

2001 2000
£m £m

Employment costs
Wages and salaries 198.8 164.7
Social security costs 18.5 15.3
Other pension costs 8.4 6.7

225.7 186.7

Pensions
The group operates a number of pension schemes in the UK and overseas, the majority being defined benefit schemes with assets held
in separate trustee administered funds.

The principal UK scheme is valued by an independent qualified actuary every three years. The most recent valuation of the scheme was
at 1 April 1998 using the age attained method. The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the valuation were that the long term
annual rate of return would be 9.0%, dividend growth would be 5.5% per annum and the average annual increase to pensionable
salaries and price inflation would be 7.0% and 4.5% respectively. The market value of the assets of this scheme as at the date of the
valuation was £130.6m. The actuarial value of the assets at the valuation date was sufficient to cover 102% of the liabilities that have
accrued to members, after allowing for expected future increases in pensionable salaries. On the alternative minimum funding
requirement valuation basis, which was assessed as required by the Pensions Act 1995 as part of the triennial valuation of the scheme,
the ratio of assets to liabilities was 106%. The next triennial valuation of the scheme is in the process of being carried out as at 1 April
2001.

The actuarial method used to determine the pension cost in the financial statements for the scheme is the projected unit method. The
principal actuarial assumptions adopted to determine the pension cost were that the long term annual rate of return would be 9.5%,
dividend growth would be 6% per annum, the average increase in pensionable salaries would be 6.5% and increases to pensions in
payment would be 3%.

The cumulative amount by which the main UK schemes have been funded in excess of the SSAP 24 charge is carried as a prepayment
in the balance sheet (see note 17).

The main ove rseas schemes are in the USA and we re ass e ssed by qualified actuaries as at 1 January 2001. The actuarial value of the
a ssets of the schemes was sufficient to cover 106% of the liabilities that had accrued to members, after allowing for ex p e c ted future
i n c reases in pensionable salaries. The policy is to make contributions equal to or gre a ter than the minimum based on USA pension law.
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11 Employees continued

FRS 17 disclosures
The transitional disclosure requirements of FRS 17 “Retirement Benefits” are given below. The group operates a number of defined
benefit schemes, including the Cobham Pension Plan (‘CPP’). A full valuation of the CPP scheme was undertaken as at 1 April 1998 and
updated to 31 December 2001 by a qualified independent actuary.

The major assumptions used by the actuaries of the group schemes as at 31 December 2001 in respect of FRS 17 were as follows:

UK Schemes USA Schemes

Rate of increase in salaries 4.0 % pa 4.0% pa
Discount rate 6.0 % pa 7.0% pa
Inflation 2.5 % pa 2.5% pa

The assets of the various schemes are held in managed and segregated funds held with various companies. The fair value of the assets
held at 31 December 2001 and the expected rates of return are as follows:

Fair Value Expected rates of return
UK Schemes USA Schemes UK Schemes USA Schemes

£m £m % %

Equities 145.5 8.1 8.0% pa 9.0% pa
Bonds 30.1 4.8 5.5% pa 7.0% pa
Cash 8.3 0.7 4.0% pa 4.0% pa

Total 183.9 13.6

The funding position of the schemes in the group as calculated under FRS 17 as at 31 December 2001 was as follows:

£m

Total fair value of assets 197.5
Present value of liabilities (204.3)

Deficit as calculated under FRS 17 (6.8)
Related deferred tax asset 2.1

Net pension liability as calculated under FRS 17 (4.7)

If FRS 17 had been adopted in the financial statements, the group’s net assets and reserves would be as follows:

Consolidated net assets

2001
£m

Net assets 316.9
Prepaid pension contributions, as calculated under SSAP 24 (20.9)
Related deferred tax liability 5.8

301.8
Net liability, as calculated under FRS 17 (4.7)

Net assets, including liability as calculated under FRS 17 297.1

Consolidated reserves

2001
£m

Reserves (note 23) 290.9
Prepaid pension contributions net of deferred tax , as calculated under SSAP 24 (15.1)

275.8
Net liability as calculated under FRS 17 (4.7)

Reserves, including liability as calculated under FRS 17 271.1



Cobham plc Annual Report & Accounts 2001 Page 55

12 Intangible Fixed Assets

Goodwill Other Total
Group £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2001 171.5 3.0 174.5
Additions – 1.4 1.4
Undertakings acquired (note 27) 89.0 0.1 89.1
Adjustment to provisional fair value of purchased goodwill (note 27) 0.4 – 0.4

At 31 December 2001 260.9 4.5 265.4

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2001 8.9 0.3 9.2
Charge for the year 11.8 0.5 12.3

At 31 December 2001 20.7 0.8 21.5

Net book amount
At 31 December 2001 240.2 3.7 243.9

At 1 January 2001 162.6 2.7 165.3

Other intangible fixed assets are purchased patents, licences and trade marks.

13 Tangible Fixed Assets

Plant and Payments
Land and Buildings Machinery Fixtures on Account

(including Fittings and Assets
Investment Long Short Aircraft & Tools and Under Con-
Properties Freehold Leases Leases Vehicles) Equipment struction Total

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2001 – cost – 51.1 17.6 1.3 243.7 40.9 10.4 365.0
At 1 January 2001 – valuation 5.3 – – – – – – 5.3
Foreign exchange adjustments – 0.4 (0.1) – (2.0) (0.1) – (1.8)
Additions – 1.6 – 0.1 23.7 5.8 1.0 32.2
Undertakings acquired – 1.0 – – 4.6 3.2 – 8.8
Disposals (1.2) – – – (8.3) (3.4) – (12.9)
Reclassifications – 8.6 – – 1.5 – (10.1) –

At 31 December 2001 4.1 62.7 17.5 1.4 263.2 46.4 1.3 396.6

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2001 – 12.0 2.6 0.6 142.4 26.1 – 183.7
Foreign exchange adjustments – – – – (0.3) – – (0.3)
Charge for the year – 1.7 0.3 0.1 19.4 4.6 – 26.1
Undertakings acquired – 0.2 – – 3.0 2.4 – 5.6
Disposals – – – – (6.7) (2.8) – (9.5)

At 31 December 2001 – 13.9 2.9 0.7 157.8 30.3 – 205.6

Net book amount
At 31 December 2001 4.1 48.8 14.6 0.7 105.4 16.1 1.3 191.0

At 1 January 2001 5.3 39.1 15.0 0.7 101.3 14.8 10.4 186.6

Investment properties are shown at open market value as per a directors’ valuation. The historic cost of these investment properties is
£2.4m (2000 - £3.6m).
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13 Tangible Fixed Assets continued

Assets capitalised held under finance leases included mainly in plant and machinery:

2001 2000
£m £m

Cost 1.0 0.9
Accumulated depreciation (0.4) (0.3)

Net book amount 0.6 0.6

Land and Buildings
Investment Plant and
Properties Freehold Machinery Total

Parent Company £m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2001 5.3 0.3 0.4 6.0
Additions – – 0.1 0.1
Disposals (1.2) – (0.1) (1.3)

At 31 December 2001 4.1 0.3 0.4 4.8

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2001 – 0.1 0.2 0.3
Charge for the year – – 0.1 0.1
Disposals – – (0.1) (0.1)

At 31 December 2001 – 0.1 0.2 0.3

Net book amount
At 31 December 2001 4.1 0.2 0.2 4.5

At 1 January 2001 5.3 0.2 0.2 5.7

Investment properties are shown at open market value as per a directors’ valuation which equates to cost.

2001 2000
£m £m

Capital commitments
Contracts placed 8.5 2.9

The parent company had no capital commitments at 31 December 2001 (2000 - £nil).
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14 Fixed Asset Investments

Group
2001 2000

£m £m

Investments in joint ventures
At 1 January 5.6 3.9
Additional investment in year 1.1 –
Goodwill amortisation (0.1) (0.1)
Share of retained reserves 2.6 1.8

At 31 December 9.2 5.6

Goodwill at cost of £1.8m (2000 - £1.8m) and net book amount of £1.5m (2000 - £1.6m) relating to joint ventures is included within
interests in joint ventures at 31 December. Related amortisation of £0.1m (2000 - £0.1m) has been charged during the year. Details of
joint ventures are included in note 38. The additional investment in equity in the year resulted in no increase in the share of the joint
venture held.

Parent Company

Shares Loans 2001 2000
£m £m £m £m

Investment in group undertakings
At 1 January 30.6 (3.4) 27.2 27.2
Additions 38.2 – 38.2 –

At 31 December – cost 68.8 (3.4) 65.4 27.2

15 Fixed Asset Investment

Parent Company
and Group

2001
£m

Investment in own shares
Additions 1.4

At 31 December 1.4

The investment in own shares of £1.4m relates to 323,390 ordinary shares held by the group’s qualifying employee share ownership
trust (‘QUEST’). The QUEST was established during the year to acquire new shares in the company for the benefit of employees and
directors of the group. On 19 December 2001, the company provided £3.5m for this purpose of which £2.1m was by way of gift and
£1.4m was by way of loan. On the same date, the QUEST subscribed at market value for 323,390 of the company’s ordinary shares. 
The shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares. They will be transferred to employees and directors in
satisfaction of options granted to them under the Cobham Savings Related Share Option Scheme. The cost of the gift has been
transferred by the company directly to the profit and loss account reserve. The excess of the subscription price over the nominal value
of the shares issued which amounts to £3.5m has been taken to the share premium account.

The shares held by the QUEST at 31 December 2001 have been included in the group balance sheet, as investment in own shares, at a
value of £1.4m, which is equivalent to the amounts receivable from employees on exercise of their options. The market value of the
shares at 31 December 2001 was £3.5m.

Under the terms of the trust deed, dividends have been waived on the shares held by the QUEST and all costs relating to the above
scheme are dealt with in the consolidated profit and loss account as they accrue.
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16 Stocks

Group
2001 2000

£m £m

Raw materials and consumables 70.4 58.1
Work in progress 67.7 59.1
Finished goods and goods for resale 15.5 10.7
Payments on account (10.0) (3.9)

143.6 124.0

There is no significant difference between the replacement cost and the value of stocks shown.

17 Debtors

Group Parent Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 146.3 108.3 – 0.1
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings – – 33.4 83.7
Amounts owed by joint ventures (note 37) 0.3 1.1 0.2 –
Other debtors 7.6 6.6 – –
Prepayments and accrued income 21.2 16.2 1.5 1.1
Amounts recoverable on contracts 0.8 1.3 – –
Taxation recoverable 0.3 – – –

176.5 133.5 35.1 84.9

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Prepaid pension contributions (note 11) 20.9 18.4 – –
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings – – 525.1 416.2
Prepayments and accrued income – 0.3 – –
Other debtors 0.1 1.3 – –
Deferred taxation – – 0.1 –

21.0 20.0 525.2 416.2

18 Current Investments

Group Parent Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Listed investments 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Investments above are stated at the lower of cost and market value. They are quoted on a recognised stock exchange in Great Britain
and their market value at 31 December 2001 amounted to £0.2m (2000 - £0.2m).
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19 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Group Parent Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Borrowings
Bank loans and overdrafts 115.4 99.0 123.2 121.3
Senior notes 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4
Other borrowings 1.2 2.9 – –
Finance leases 0.2 0.2 – –

120.2 105.5 126.6 124.7

Further details concerning borrowings are given in note 20.

Group Parent Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Other creditors
Payments received on account 17.3 16.3 0.1 0.1
Trade creditors 74.1 61.0 0.4 1.0
Bills of exchange payable 1.4 0.9 – –
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings – – 2.4 4.7
Amounts owed to joint ventures (note 37) 8.2 5.8 – –
Other creditors 18.2 21.1 – –
Taxation payable 23.5 24.0 6.4 6.5
Payroll and other taxes, including social security 13.3 9.5 1.2 0.5
Accruals and deferred income 25.2 19.5 1.2 1.4
Proposed dividends 16.6 14.2 16.6 14.2

197.8 172.3 28.3 28.4

Taxation payable
UK corporation tax 18.5 20.8 6.4 6.5
Overseas tax 5.0 3.2 – –

23.5 24.0 6.4 6.5
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20 Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Parent Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Borrowings
Senior notes 27.4 30.1 27.4 30.1
Bank loans 96.8 44.2 71.6 –
Loan notes 1.7 – – –
Other borrowings 5.1 0.1 – –
Finance leases† 0.4 0.5 – –

131.4 74.9 99.0 30.1

† Comprising obligations of £0.5m (2000 - £0.6m) less finance charges of £0.1m (2000 - £0.1m).

Group Parent Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Other creditors
Other 9.8 2.8 – –
Accruals and deferred income 2.5 2.6 – –

12.3 5.4 – –

Group Parent Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Loans
Senior notes, debenture loans, bank loans, loan notes and other 

borrowings are repayable as follows:
Between one and two years 80.0 20.1 75.0 3.4
Between two and five years 44.0 41.5 17.1 16.7
After five years 7.0 12.8 6.9 10.0

131.0 74.4 99.0 30.1

Senior notes, repayable by instalments, were issued in March 1996 and comprise two series of notes for US$25m, one with an average
life of 7 years and the other an average life of 10 years. Repayments totalling $5m have been made to date. The notes carry a fixed
interest rate of 6.28% for the 7 year notes and 6.42% for the 10 year notes.

Loan notes, repayable in 5 years, carry a fixed interest rate of 4.75%.

Included in creditors payable after five years is £6.9m (2000 - £10.0m) in respect of the senior notes referred to above.

Group
2001 2000

£m £m

Finance leases
Obligations are as follows:
In one year or less 0.2 0.2
Between one and two years 0.2 0.2
Between two and five years 0.2 0.3

0.6 0.7
Amounts falling due in one year or less (note 19) (0.2) (0.2)

0.4 0.5
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21 Provisions for Liabilities and Charges

Deferred Contingent
Taxation Acquisitions Consideration Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m

Group
At 1 January 2001 14.5 19.5 – 0.6 34.6
Reclassification – (19.5) – 19.5 –
Provisions created 4.2 – 20.4 2.1 26.7
Provisions released – – – (1.1) (1.1)
Expenditure charged against provisions – – – (4.5) (4.5)
Provisions acquired on acquisitions (4.2) – – – (4.2)
Adjustment to provision marked provisional

last year (note 27) – – – 0.4 0.4

At 31 December 2001 14.5 – 20.4 17.0 51.9

The provisions for liabilities and charges, excluding deferred taxation, represent:

Estimated repayment period Amount
£m

Class of provision
Onerous lease liability Within one year 0.3
Liabilities arising under operating leases Over the next five years 5.5
Onerous trading contracts Over the next four years 6.6
Warranty claims Over the next two years 4.3
Legal claims Over the next two years 0.3
Contingent consideration Over one to two years 3.9
Contingent consideration Over two to four years 1.2
Contingent consideration Over four to five years 15.3

37.4

Group Parent Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Deferred taxation
The amount provided for represents:
Accelerated capital allowances 8.6 11.3 0.3 0.4
Other timing differences 5.9 3.2 (0.3) (0.1)

14.5 14.5 – 0.3

In the parent company there is a debtor of £0.1m (2000 - £nil) for deferred tax in respect of an “Other timing difference”.

Group
2001 2000

£m £m

Full provision has been made for the potential deferred taxation liability, with the exception of:
Accelerated capital allowances 2.4 2.4
Prepaid pension contributions 0.5 0.5

2.9 2.9

The amount of £2.9m at 31 December 2000 has changed from £1.3m, as disclosed in last year’s financial statements, reflecting an
updated calculation of the maximum potential timing difference at that date.

No provision has been made for additional taxation which might become payable in the event of a distribution of profits retained by
overseas subsidiaries. No provision has been made for the deferred taxation attributable to the revaluation reserve as no liability is
expected to arise.
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22 Called Up Share Capital

2001 2000
£m £m

Authorised
Equity
123,920,000 (2000 - 123,920,000) 25p ordinary shares 31.0 31.0
Non equity
20,000 (2000 - 20,000) 6% second cumulative preference shares of £1 – –

31.0 31.0

Allotted and fully paid
Equity
100,895,897 (2000 - 99,351,437) 25p ordinary shares 25.2 24.8
Non equity
19,700 (2000 - 19,700) 6% second cumulative preference shares of £1 – –

25.2 24.8

During the year 87,982 ordinary shares were issued in connection with the Cobham Share Incentive Scheme, 213,552 were issued 
in connection with the executive share option schemes, 323,390 were issued in connection with the QUEST, 221,639 were issued in
connection with the Cobham Savings Related Share Option Scheme, 57,833 were issued in connection with the Cobham Long Term
Incentive Plan and 640,064 were issued in connection with the acquisition of Omnipless (Proprietary) Limited. The aggregate nominal
value of such shares was £0.4m and the cash consideration received net of costs was £3.3m, together with consideration of £7.3m 
in respect of the Omnipless acquisition. In addition £0.5m was transferred from other reserves to called up share capital and share
premium account in relation to the Cobham Long Term Incentive Plan.

The following options over ordinary shares were outstanding as at 31 December 2001:

Dates normally
Dates granted Number of Shares Prices – pence exercisable

FR Executive
Share Option Scheme
1993 1,957 (2000 - 45,003) 266.6 1996 – 2003

Cobham Savings Related
Share Option Scheme
1994 – 2001 1,361,646 (2000 - 1,683,568) 239 to 836 2002 – 2009

Cobham Executive
Share Option Scheme
1995 – 2001 1,228,425 (2000 - 975,043) 315 to 1,083 1998 – 2011

The 6% second cumulative preference shareholders are entitled to receive a fixed cumulative preference dividend at the rate of 6% per
annum in priority to the payment of dividends on the ordinary shares (note 8). In addition, on a return of assets on the liquidation or
otherwise of the company, the assets available for distribution are to be applied first in repaying to the holders of the 6% second
cumulative preference shares the amounts paid up on their shares. On a show of hands every member holding 6% second cumulative
preference shares who is present in person has one vote and on a poll every member has one vote for every £1 in nominal amount of
the shares of which he is the holder. The 6% second cumulative preference shares are non-redeemable.
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23 Reserves

Share Profit
Premium Revaluation Other and Loss

Account Reserve Reserve Account Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Group
At 1 January 2001 56.8 1.7 0.8 186.2 245.5
Premium on share issues 13.7 – – – 13.7
Long term incentive plan – issue of shares 0.5 – (0.5) – –
Long term incentive plan – charge – – 1.0 – 1.0
Profit retained for the year – – – 36.0 36.0
Contribution to the QUEST – – – (2.1) (2.1)
Foreign exchange – – – (3.2) (3.2)

At 31 December 2001 71.0 1.7 1.3 216.9 290.9

Share Profit
Premium Special Other and Loss

Account Reserve Reserve Account Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Parent Company
At 1 January 2001 56.8 43.6 0.8 230.1 331.3
Premium on share issues 13.7 – – – 13.7
Long term incentive plan – issue of shares 0.5 – (0.5) – –
Long term incentive plan – charge – – 1.0 – 1.0
Profit retained for the year – – – 16.5 16.5
Contribution to the QUEST – – – (2.1) (2.1)

At 31 December 2001 71.0 43.6 1.3 244.5 360.4

No taxation liability is anticipated to arise in respect of the revalued property owing to the availability of capital gains losses.

Reserves are attributable to equity interests.

The cumulative goodwill written off on acquisitions net of disposals totals £176.9m from 1954 to 31 December 2001 (2000 - £176.9m)
after writing back £nil in 2001 (2000 - £5.1m).

The group’s share of the post acquisition reserves of joint ventures at 31 December 2001 was £6.6m (2000 - £4.0m).

The other reserve relates to provisions made in accordance with UITF 17 for shares allocated under the long term incentive plans.
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24 Reconciliation of Operating Profit to Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities

2001 2000
£m £m

Operating profit 96.2 88.0
Depreciation 26.1 20.8
Amortisation of goodwill and intangibles 12.3 4.8
Profit on sale of fixed assets (0.8) –
Provisions for liabilities and charges (3.5) 0.1
Foreign exchange (0.6) (1.3)
Long term incentive plan 1.0 0.7
Increase in stocks (10.6) (25.2)
Increase in debtors (38.4) (13.0)
Increase in creditors 8.5 25.4

Net cash inflow from operating activities 90.2 100.3

The net cash inflow from operating activities is arrived at after incurring integration costs of £4.1m (2000 – £nil).

25 Analysis of Net Debt

Acquisitions
At 1 (excluding At 31

January Cash cash and Other Exchange December
2001 Flow overdrafts) changes movements 2001

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 27.7 15.0 – – 0.3 43.0

Current asset investments 0.1 – – – – 0.1

Short term deposits 0.8 – – – – 0.8

Debt due within one year (105.3) (10.5) (0.1) (3.4) (0.7) (120.0)
Debt due after one year (74.4) (58.6) (0.7) 3.4 (0.7) (131.0)
Finance leases (0.7) 0.4 (0.3) – – (0.6)

–––––––––––

(68.7)

Total (151.8) (53.7) (1.1) – (1.1) (207.7)

2001 2000
£m £m

Senior notes, loans, other borrowings, debenture loans and finance leases 251.6 180.4
Cash at bank and in hand including short term deposits (43.8) (28.5)
Current investments (0.1) (0.1)

Net debt 207.7 151.8
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26 Analysis of Cash Flows for Headings Netted in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2001 2000
£m £m

a. Returns on Investments and Servicing of Finance
Interest received 3.0 2.8
Interest paid (15.4) (7.1)

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (12.4) (4.3)

b. Capital Expenditure and Financial Investment
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets (30.6) (45.7)
Payments to acquire intangible fixed assets other than goodwill (1.4) (2.2)
Receipts from sales of fixed assets 4.2 7.4

Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment (27.8) (40.5)

c. Acquisitions and Disposals
Purchase of undertakings (note 28) (61.2) (100.9)
Cash consideration for sale of subsidiaries – 14.0
Deferred consideration (0.5) (0.8)
Investment in joint venture (1.1) –

Net cash outflow for acquisitions and disposals (62.8) (87.7)

d. Management of Liquid Resources
Net sale of short term deposits – 12.4

Net cash inflow from management of liquid resources – 12.4

e. Financing
Issue of ordinary share capital 3.3 2.7
Debt due within a year:
increase in short term loans 12.0 62.7
repayment of debenture loans and other borrowings (1.5) (15.6)

Debt due beyond a year:
increase in long term borrowings 52.0 20.2
increase/(repayment) of debenture loans and other borrowings 6.6 (2.4)

Capital element of finance lease rentals (0.4) (1.4)

Net cash inflow from financing 72.0 66.2

27 Purchase of Undertakings

The acquisitions during the year were as follows:

In January 2001 Chelton in France purchased 98.69% of TEAM SA for a cash consideration of FRF98.7m (£9.4m).

In February 2001 the acquisition was completed of Omnipless (Proprietary) Limited in South Africa. Consideration for the purchase
amounted to £38.0m, satisfied as to £30.7m in cash and £7.3m by the issue of 640,064 fully paid ordinary shares in Cobham plc. 
In addition, £2.8m has been accrued in respect of contingent and deferred consideration. This represents the directors’ best estimate 
of amounts which may become payable upon the achievement of certain profitability levels and targets up to December 2004.

In March 2001 Chelton acquired Seimac Limited in Canada for a cash consideration of C$9.5m (£4.3m). A further amount of C$6.0m
(£2.7m) is payable conditional upon the achievement of certain levels of profitability in the two years following acquisition.

In May 2001 Chelton acquired the Airtron microwave product line from Litton Industries Inc in the USA for a cash consideration of
$15.7m (£10.8m).

In June 2001 a product line was acquired by Chelton from Sierra Flight Systems Inc in the USA for $3.0m (£2.1m) in cash. In addition,
contingent consideration based on sharing profits up to May 2006 is payable; the directors’ best estimate of this amount is $22.2m
(£15.2m).

In August 2001 a product line was acquired by Chelton from OCEM Avionics Corp in the USA for a cash consideration of $0.5m (£0.3m)
and contingent consideration of $1.0m (£0.7m).

In September 2001 Chelton purchased Micromill Electronics Limited. The acquisition was satisfied by cash and loan notes totalling
£1.8m with contingent consideration payable based on future performance up to an additional maximum of £2.3m.
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27 Purchase of Undertakings continued

In November 2001 Hyper Industrie SA and Hyper Numériques SA were purchased in France by Chelton for a cash consideration of
FRF11.45m (£1.1m).

The amount accrued in the financial statements in respect of deferred and contingent consideration payable in future years in respect
of acquisitions made in 2001 is £22.6m. The £22.6m represents the directors’ best estimate of the liabilities which are expected to arise
as a result of entering into the contracts to acquire the above businesses.

A summary of all the undertakings acquired showing book values and fair value adjustments is as follows:

Fair Value Adjustments

Book Accounting
Values Policy Other Total

£m £m £m £m

Intangible fixed assets 4.1 (4.0) – 0.1
Tangible fixed assets 3.1 – – 3.1
Stocks 10.1 (1.1) – 9.0
Debtors 6.1 – – 6.1
Tax debtor 0.2 – – 0.2
Cash at bank and in hand 2.0 – – 2.0
Bank overdrafts (2.5) – – (2.5)
Bank loans (0.8) – – (0.8)
Finance leases (0.3) – – (0.3)
Creditors (11.6) (1.8) (4.3) (17.7)
Deferred taxation 0.7 2.3 1.2 4.2

11.1 (4.6) (3.1) 3.4
Goodwill (note 12) 89.0

92.4

Satisfied by:
Cash, including expenses of acquisition (note 28) 60.7
Deferred and contingent consideration 22.6
Shares issued 7.3
Loan notes 1.7
Creditors for expenses 0.1

92.4

Fair value adjustments
(i) Accounting policy

The fair value adjustment in intangible fixed assets relates to the write off of capitalised development expenditure. The adjustment 
in respect of stocks represents a revision to an obsolescence policy. The adjustment to creditors relates to the provision for losses 
on development contracts. The deferred taxation adjustment reflects the tax effect of the adjustments.

(ii) Other
The adjustment to creditors represents losses on an onerous foreign exchange contract of £3.7m and the balance of £0.6m is the 
cost, net of tax relief, of liabilities not previously recognised. The adjustment to deferred taxation represents the tax impact of the 
adjustment in respect of the foreign exchange contract.

Provisional estimate in 2000
In 2000 there was a provision of £2.6m in respect of an onerous trading contract which was included as a provisional item in view of the
close proximity of the year end. In 2001 the directors have now been able to assess the level of provision and an additional £0.4m has
been provided (notes 12 and 21).

28 Analysis of Cash in Respect of the Purchase of Undertakings

2001 2000
£m £m

Cash consideration (note 27) 60.7 103.3
Overdrafts assumed and cash acquired in subsidiary undertakings 0.5 (2.4)

Net outflow of cash in respect of the purchase of undertakings (note 26c) 61.2 100.9
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29 Analysis of the Balances of Cash as shown in the Balance Sheet

2001 2000
£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 43.8 28.5
Less short term deposits not classified as cash under FRS 1 (0.8) (0.8)

43.0 27.7

30 Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments

Set out below are the narrative disclosures relating to financial instruments. The numerical disclosures are set out in notes 31 to 34.
The group has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 13 “Derivatives and other financial instruments” not to provide
numerical disclosures in relation to short term debtors and creditors, other than currency risk disclosures.

Financial instruments

The group finances its operations through a mixture of retained profits and borrowings. The group does not use complex derivative
financial instruments. Where it does use financial instruments these are mainly to manage the currency risks arising from normal
operations and to raise finance for the group’s operations. The group’s financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise
borrowings, cash and various items such as trade debtors and trade creditors that arise directly from its operations. The group also
uses forward foreign currency contracts to manage transactional currency risks arising from the group’s operations.

It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

Foreign currency risk is the most significant aspect for the group in the area of financial instruments. It is exposed to a lesser extent to
other risks such as interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below. The policies have remained unchanged throughout the year.

Foreign currency risk

The group, which is based in the UK and reports in sterling, has significant investment in overseas operations in the USA, with further
investments in other EU countries, Australia, Canada, South Africa and Asia. As a result, the group’s balance sheet can be affected by
movements in these countries’ exchange rates. The group’s policy is to reduce, or eliminate where practicable, both structural and
transactional foreign exchange risk. Where significant, currency denominated net assets are partially hedged by currency borrowings.
Currency exposures are reviewed regularly and all significant foreign exchange transactions are approved by the parent company.

The pound/US dollar exchange ra te is the most important as far as Cobham is co n cerned, particularly given the level of US dollars which
the subsidiaries expect to re ce i ve from their normal business activities. In addition to the longer term borrowing st r u c t u re, a number of
financial instruments are used to manage the fo reign exchange position, such as fo r w a rd co n t racts. The most significant of these
i n struments is a fo reign exchange co n t ract, which was ente red into in 1997, whereby the group has agreed to swap dollars for sterling at a
ra te of £1 : US$1.6263 over the period to 2012 with US$111m of this commitment being outstanding at 31 December 2001. Approx i m a te ly
US$16m of the commitment ex i sts in 2002, US$53m from 2003 to 2006 with the balance of US$42m over the remaining 6 ye a rs. It is the
g ro u p ’s current belief that the net dollar re ceipts from its subsidiaries will exceed the level of the outstanding co m m i t m e n t .

The group also has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from sales and purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the unit’s functional currency. The group’s policy is to minimise trading in subsidiaries’ non operating currencies. However,
where this is impractical the group will seek to reduce its exposure through the use of forward contracts.

The group does not hedge balance sheet and profit and loss translation exposures. Generally, borrowings are arranged in local
currencies to provide a natural hedge against overseas assets.

Interest rate risk

The group has various long and short term borrowings principally in sterling and US dollars at fixed and floating rates of interest. 
The group is continually monitoring its exposure to movements in interest rates in order to bring greater stability and certainty with
respect to borrowing costs. Group policy is to assess borrowings with regard to fixed or variable rates of interest depending on
prevailing market conditions, including instances where interest rate swaps are used to fix floating rates of interest.

Surplus funds are placed on short term deposit. These deposits have floating rates of interest, and thus there is some modest exposure
to interest rates.
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30 Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments continued

Liquidity risk

The group has a strong cash flow and where practicable the funds generated by operating companies are managed on a regional basis.
For short term working capital purposes in the UK, most operating companies utilise local bank facilities within an overall group
arrangement. In the USA a central treasury function is maintained which all US subsidiaries use. These practices allow a balance to be
maintained between continuity of funding, security and flexibility.

As regards liquidity, the group’s policy has throughout the year been to maintain a mix of short, medium and long term borrowings with
their lenders. Short term flexibility is achieved by overdraft facilities. Details of the year end position, which is in accordance with this
policy, are given in note 33. It is, in addition, the group’s policy to maintain undrawn committed borrowing facilities in order to provide
flexibility in the management of the group’s liquidity; details are also given in note 33.

31 Foreign Currency Risk

The table below shows the extent to which group companies have monetary assets and liabilities in currencies other than their local
currency. Foreign exchange differences on retranslation of these assets and liabilities are taken to the profit and loss account of the
group companies and the group.

Net foreign currency monetary (liabilities)/assets

Australian EU Other
Sterling US dollars dollars currencies currencies Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Functional currency of group operation:
Sterling – (28.0) 4.9 3.2 1.3 (18.6)
US dollars (1.2) – – – 0.3 (0.9)
Australian dollars (0.8) (24.3) – – 0.4 (24.7)
EU currencies (excluding sterling) (11.0) 7.6 – – 0.1 (3.3)
Other currencies (1.7) 0.9 – – – (0.8)

At 31 December 2001 (14.7) (43.8) 4.9 3.2 2.1 (48.3)

Australian EU Other
Sterling US dollars dollars currencies currencies Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Functional currency of group operation:
Sterling – 4.3 2.5 3.1 1.3 11.2
US dollars 0.3 – – – – 0.3
Australian dollars (0.6) (29.4) – – – (30.0)
EU currencies (excluding sterling) (0.3) 0.5 – – – 0.2
Other currencies – 1.7 – – – 1.7

At 31 December 2000 (0.6) (22.9) 2.5 3.1 1.3 (16.6)

The amounts shown in the table above take into account the effect of any forward currency contracts entered into for the purpose of
managing these currency exposures.

Hedges of foreign currency transactions

As described above, it is the group’s policy to partially hedge currency denominated net assets by currency borrowings. As these are 
not formally matched, the group recognises all gains and losses on these in the period they are incurred. As at 31 December 2001 
and 31 December 2000 the group had no unrecognised or deferred gains or losses on forward contracts.
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32 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk and profile of financial liabilities

The interest rate risk profile of the group’s financial liabilities was:

Financial
Floating Fixed liabilities on

rate rate which no
financial financial interest is
liabilities liabilities paid Total

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Currency
Sterling 106.9 77.4 0.2 0.1 11.5 10.4 118.6 87.9
US dollars 80.8 49.3 37.4 41.0 16.7 0.3 134.9 90.6
Australian dollars 1.2 1.3 1.9 2.4 – 1.2 3.1 4.9
EU currencies (excluding sterling) 16.6 4.8 6.2 4.1 4.7 – 27.5 8.9
Other currencies – – 0.4 – 1.7 – 2.1 –

At 31 December 205.5 132.8 46.1 47.6 34.6 11.9 286.2 192.3

All the group’s short term creditors (other than borrowings) are excluded from the above tables either due to the exemption granted to
short term items or because they do not meet the definition of a financial liability. In addition provisions for liabilities and charges of
£24.4m (2000 - £26.3m) and long term creditors of £5.2m (2000 - £1.8m) have been excluded as they do not meet the definition of a
financial liability under FRS 13.

Financial
liabilities on

which no
Fixed rate interest is

financial liabilities paid

Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average period average

interest rate for which rate period until
% is fixed – years maturity – years

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

Currency
Sterling 11.2 6.3 2.3 0.2 2.4 2.4
US dollars 6.5 6.6 2.8 3.6 2.9 3.4
Australian dollars 6.8 6.9 2.2 3.4 – 5.0
EU currencies (excluding sterling) 5.1 5.6 4.1 7.3 4.0 –
Other currencies 8.0 – 0.7 – 1.5 –

At 31 December 6.2 6.5 2.9 3.9 2.9 2.8

The floating ra te liabilities comprise borrowings and ove rd rafts that bear inte re st at ra tes based on the appro p r i a te LIBOR and base ra te s .
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32 Interest Rate Risk continued

Interest rate risk and profile of financial assets

2001 2000
£m £m

Currency
Sterling 5.0 1.7
US dollars 27.7 24.8
Australian dollars 1.4 1.3
EU currencies (excluding sterling) 6.7 1.8
Other currencies 3.2 0.3

At 31 December 44.0 29.9

Floating rate 39.7 27.1
Fixed rate 1.1 2.2
No interest paid 3.2 0.6

44.0 29.9

The financial assets comprise cash, short term deposits and current investments at short term money market rates applicable to the
currency together with certain long term debtors that meet the definition of financial assets under FRS 13. Of the fixed rate financial
assets £1.1m (2000 - £0.9m) are denominated in Australian dollars and the weighted average interest rate applied is 4.1%, fixed for
approximately four years. The remaining fixed rate financial assets of £nil (2000 - £1.3m) are denominated in US dollars and the interest
rate applied is 6.5%, fixed for approximately 3 years. Of the long term debtors of £21.0m (2000 - £20.0m), £20.9m (2000 - £18.7m) have
been excluded as they do not meet the definition of a financial asset under FRS 13.

33 Liquidity Risk

Maturity of financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the group’s financial liabilities, other than short term creditors, was as follows:

Provisions and
long term

Debt Finance leases creditors Total
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Within one year, or on demand 120.0 105.3 0.2 0.2 1.6 1.9 121.8 107.4
Between one and two years 80.0 20.1 0.2 0.2 8.3 2.8 88.5 23.1
Between two and five years 44.0 41.5 0.2 0.1 21.7 5.9 65.9 47.5
Over five years 7.0 12.8 – 0.2 3.0 1.3 10.0 14.3

At 31 December 251.0 179.7 0.6 0.7 34.6 11.9 286.2 192.3

Borrowing facilities

The group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities available in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met.
These facilities are at floating interest rates:

2001 2000
£m £m

Expiring within one year 55.0 40.3
Expiring between one and two years 42.4 43.6
Expiring in over five years – 0.2

At 31 December 97.4 84.1
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34 Fair Values

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides a comparison by category of the carrying amounts and the fair values of the group’s financial assets and
liabilities. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction between informed
and willing parties, other than a forced or liquidation sale, and excludes accrued interest. Where available, market values have been
used to determine fair values. Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting expected cash
flows at prevailing interest and exchange rates. For floating rate loans, fair values closely approximate to cost.

Book Value Fair Value
2001 2000 2001 2000

31 December £m £m £m £m

Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the group’s operations:
Short term borrowings (120.2) (105.5) (120.2) (105.5)
Long term borrowings (131.4) (74.9) (132.2) (74.4)
Other long term creditors (7.1) (3.6) (7.1) (3.6)
Provisions for liabilities and charges (27.5) (8.3) (27.5) (8.3)
Cash in hand 43.0 27.7 43.0 27.7
Short term deposits 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8
Current asset investments 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Other long term debtors 0.1 1.3 0.1 1.3

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the currency profile:
Currency swaps – – (7.2) (4.7)

Of the unrecognised loss on currency swaps at 31 December 2000, a loss of £1.3m (2000 - £0.7m) was recognised in the profit and loss
account in the year. At 31 December 2001, £0.8m (2000 - £0.9m) is expected to be recognised in the profit and loss account in the
forthcoming year.

Book Value Fair Value
2001 2000 2001 2000

31 December £m £m £m £m

Derivative financial instruments held to hedge the currency exposure on 
expected future sales:
Forward foreign currency contracts (3.6) – (4.9) –

There was no material impact on the profit and loss account in 2001, or is there expected to be in 2002, from unrecognised losses on
forward foreign currency contracts.

35 Operating Leases

The following annual operating lease commitments existed at the year end:

Group
Land and Buildings Other
2001 2000 2001 2000

£m £m £m £m

Annual commitments which expire:
Within one year 0.5 0.1 3.8 2.2
Between one and five years 1.2 1.1 23.8 19.8
In five years or more 0.5 0.7 0.3 3.9

2.2 1.9 27.9 25.9

36 Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2001 the parent company had contingent liabilities in respect of bank and contractual performance guarantees and
other matters arising in the ordinary course of business entered into for or on behalf of certain group undertakings. It is not expected
that any material liability will arise in respect thereof.
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37 Related Party Transactions

Directors

The directors of Cobham plc had no material transactions with the company during the year, other than as a result of service
agreements. Details of the directors’ remuneration are disclosed in the remuneration report.

Joint Venture Companies

The following transactions took place between the group and its joint venture companies during the year:

2001 2000
£m £m

Increase in short term loan movements 2.4 1.8
Net sales of goods, contracts and services 5.7 10.2
Additional investment in joint venture (note 14) 1.1 –

The following balances relating to joint venture companies were included in the consolidated balance sheet at the year end:

2001 2000
£m £m

Receivable balances :
Trading balances (note 17) 0.3 1.1

Payable balances :
Short term loan (note 19) 8.2 5.8
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38 Principal Interests in Undertakings

All subsidiary undertakings have been included in the consolidation. The undertakings which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or the net assets of the group were:

Country of
Registration/ Percentage of
Incorporation Class of Nominal Value of

Undertaking and Operation Shares Shares Held

Manufacturing
Alan Cobham Engineering Limited* England Ordinary 100
Carleton Technologies Inc. USA Common Stock 100
Conax Florida Corporation USA Common Stock 100
Flight Refuelling Limited* England Ordinary 100
FR-HiTEMP Limited England Ordinary 100
Sargent Fletcher Inc. USA Common Stock 100
Stanley Aviation Corporation USA Common Stock 100

Preferred Stock 100
Westwind Air Bearings Limited* England Ordinary 100

Deferred 100
Avionics
ACR Electronics Inc. USA Common Stock 100
Air Précision S.A. France Ordinary 100
Artex Aircraft Supplies Inc. USA Common Stock 100
Atlantic Microwave Corporation USA Common Stock 100
Chelton Antennas S.A. France Ordinary 100
Chelton Avionics Inc. USA Common Stock 100
Chelton Avionics (Proprietary) Limited South Africa Ordinary 100
Chelton (Electrostatics) Limited England Ordinary 100
Chelton Flight Systems Inc. USA Common Stock 100
Chelton Inc. USA Common Stock 100
Chelton Limited* England Ordinary 100
Chelton Radomes Limited England Ordinary 100
Cobham Composites Limited England Ordinary 100
Comant Industries Inc. USA Common Stock 100
Complas Limited England Ordinary 100
Continental Microwave & Tool Co. Inc. USA Common Stock 100
Credowan Limited England Ordinary 100
Culham Electromagnetics and Lightning Limited England Ordinary 100
European Antennas Limited England Ordinary 100
Hyper Technologies S.A. France Ordinary 100
Kevlin Corporation USA Common Stock 100
Label S.A. France Ordinary 100
Micromill Electronics Limited England Ordinary 100
Northern Airborne Technology Limited Canada Common Stock 99.6
Nurad Technologies Inc. USA Common Stock 100
Omnipless (Proprietary) Limited South Africa Ordinary 100
Salies S.A. France Ordinary 100
Seimac Limited Canada Common Stock 100
Sivers Lab A.B. Sweden Ordinary 100
Slingsby Aviation Limited England Ordinary 100
TEAM S.A. France Ordinary 98.7

Flight Operations and Services
Aviation Défense Service S.A. # France Ordinary 45
Corporate Air Spares Limited England Ordinary 100
FB Heliservices Limited# England Ordinary 50
FBS Limited# England Ordinary 50
Flight Precision Limited England Ordinary 51
FR Aviation Group Limited* England Ordinary 100
FR Aviation Limited England Ordinary 100
FR Aviation Services Limited England Ordinary 100
FRA Airmotive Limited England Ordinary 100
National Jet Systems Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100
Surveillance Australia Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100

In the case of the companies marked *, the stated percentage nominal value of issued shares is held by, or by a nominee for, 
Cobham plc. Otherwise, shares are held by, or by a nominee for, a subsidiary undertaking of Cobham plc.

# Joint ventures
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1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
(Restated) (Restated)

£m £m £m £m £m

Turnover 322.8 384.1 435.2 568.4 721.8

Underlying Profit before Taxation 52.3 63.2 72.6 90.2 103.5

Profit before Taxation 52.3 63.6 69.7 89.0 87.5
Taxation (16.6) (19.9) (21.7) (26.4) (27.7)

Profit after Taxation 35.7 43.7 48.0 62.6 59.8
Minority interest (0.1) (0.1) (0.2) (0.2) (0.2)

Attributable to Shareholders 35.6 43.6 47.8 62.4 59.6
Dividends (12.4) (15.1) (17.3) (20.2) (23.6)

Profit Retained 23.2 28.5 30.5 42.2 36.0

Net Assets Employed
Intangible assets – 39.1 62.2 165.3 243.9
Tangible assets 116.2 133.0 136.5 186.6 191.0
Investments 1.3 5.1 4.4 5.6 10.6
Current assets 223.6 236.8 252.0 306.1 385.0

341.1 414.0 455.1 663.6 830.5
Current liabilities (135.3) (137.5) (168.3) (277.8) (318.0)
Long term liabilities (102.8) (86.0) (64.9) (114.9) (195.6)

103.0 190.5 221.9 270.9 316.9

Financed by
Ordinary share capital 23.4 24.6 24.7 24.8 25.2
Reserves 79.5 165.7 196.8 245.5 290.9

Shareholders’ Funds 102.9 190.3 221.5 270.3 316.1
Minority interest 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8

103.0 190.5 221.9 270.9 316.9

p p p p p

Dividend per ordinary share 13.25 15.25 17.55 20.20 23.23
Earnings per ordinary share – underlying 38.3 44.7 51.4 64.2 75.4
Earnings per ordinary share – basic 38.3 45.1 48.5 63.0 59.4
Earnings per ordinary share – fully diluted 37.9 44.7 48.0 62.3 58.8
Net assets per ordinary share 110 194 225 273 314

£m £m £m £m £m

Market capitalisation 782 675 765 1,040 1,086

Notes: (i) Underlying profit before taxation represents the profit on ordinary activities before taxation, amortisation of goodwill, 
integration costs and exceptional items.

(ii) Fixed assets, current liabilities and long term liabilities have been restated to reflect the change in accounting policy 
in 1999 for aircraft engine overhaul expenditure.
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Shareholder Information

Analysis of Shareholders

(a) At 31 December 2001 5,387 ordinary shareholders were on the register compared with 5,738 at 31 December 2000.

(b) Analysis of ordinary shareholders on the register at 31 December 2001:

Number of Percentage Ordinary Percentage
registered of registered shares of ordinary

holders holders held shares
% (000’s) %

Size of holding

Up to 1,000 3,929 72.9 1,021 1.0
1,001 – 10,000 1,018 18.9 2,999 3.0
10,001 – 50,000 236 4.4 5,468 5.4
50,001 – 250,000 122 2.3 13,719 13.6
250,001 – 1,000,000 55 1.0 23,809 23.6
1,000,001 and above 27 0.5 53,880 53.4

5,387 100.0 100,896 100.0

Category

Private persons 3,796 70.5 7,264 7.2
Nominees 1,354 25.1 90,090 89.3
Insurance companies 2 – 1,098 1.1
Pension funds 1 – 1 –
Other corporate bodies 234 4.4 2,443 2.4

5,387 100.0 100,896 100.0

Source: Lloyds TSB Registrars.

Registrars

Enquiries concerning shareholdings or dividends should, in the first instance, be addressed to the company’s registrars, Lloyds TSB
Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA (telephone: +44 (0)870 600 3970). Shareholders should promptly notify 
the registrars of any change of address or other particulars.

The registrars now provide a range of shareholders’ services on line. The portfolio service provides access to more information on
investments including balance movements, indicative share prices and information on recent dividends. For further information and
practical help on transferring shares or updating your details, please visit www.shareview.co.uk. Through Shareview, the company
hopes in due course to give shareholders the opportunity to receive information electronically and to submit proxy instructions on line 
in connection with voting at general meetings.

Individual Savings Accounts (ISAs)

The company has introduced corporate sponsored ISAs through The Share Centre Limited, an independent stockbroker. Further
information may be obtained from The Share Centre Limited on +44 (0)1296 414444 or by writing to The Share Centre Limited, 
PO Box 2000, Aylesbury, Bucks HP21 8ZB. Alternatively, you can request details via e-mail: cobham@share.co.uk giving your 
full name and address (including postcode).

Capital Gains Tax

For the information of shareholders who held Cobham plc ordinary shares on 31 March 1982, the market value, adjusted for
capitalisation and rights issues, of the company’s ordinary shares on that date for capital gains tax purposes was 86.02p.

Financial Calendar

Annual general meeting 12 June 2002
Final dividend (if approved) 5 July 2002
Interim results September 2002
Interim dividend December 2002

Registered Office

Brook Road, Wimborne, Dorset BH21 2BJ
Telephone: +44 (0)1202 882020
Facsimile: +44 (0)1202 840523
Internet: www.cobham.com
Registered in England No. 30470
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